
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2022 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of December 5, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed conveyance of city-owned real estate to Cedar Falls Utilities by 
means of a non-exclusive permanent easement for the relocation of utilities.  
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published December 9, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and authorizing conveyance of a non-exclusive permanent easement to 
Cedar Falls Utilities for the relocation of utilities. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

3. Receive and file Mayoral veto of Ordinance #3021, amending Section 18-23(5), Powers and duties 
of the Planning and Zoning Commission, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing 2/3 majority 
vote required by City Council to approve amendments to the City's comprehensive plan that are 
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission, and Ordinance #3022, amending Chapter 26, 
Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing the 2/3 majority vote required by City Council 
to approve zoning amendments that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

4. Receive and file the resignation of Eashaan Vajpeyi as a member of the Human Rights Commission. 

5. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Craig Fairbanks, Housing Commission, term ending 12/31/2024. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

b) Helen Pearce, Housing Commission, term ending 12/31/2024. 
c) Kevin Fittro, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2025. 
d) Jason Huff, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2025. 
e) Katy Susong, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 
f) Debra Waterman, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 
g) Ross Samek, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 
h) Rick Mott, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2023. 
i) Rick Dumler, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/26. 
j) William Pierce, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2024. 
k) Steve Broell, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 
l) Colin Frese, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 
m) Andrew Tink, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2023. 
n) Travis Davison, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 

6. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of December 5, 2022 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Grow Cedar Valley Update. 
b) Council Policy on Official City Proclamations. 
c) Council Policy on Public Awards and Recognition. 
d) Council Policy on Boards and Commissions Interviews. 

7. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Rancho Chico, 618 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Wild Hare American Bar and Grill, 2512 Whitetail Drive, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
c) Golf Lab, 201 Washington Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

8. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

9. Resolution approving and adopting CFD 1127: Council Policy - Official City Proclamations. 

10. Resolution approving and adopting CFD 1128: Council Policy - Public Awards and Recognition. 

11. Resolution approving and adopting Personnel Policy 223: Sexual Abuse Prevention, for the City of 
Cedar Falls. 

12. Resolution approving and adopting Personnel Policy 608: Concussion and Head Injury, for the City 
of Cedar Falls. 

13. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to Personnel Policy 903: Grievance Procedure, for 
the City of Cedar Falls. 

14. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
2722 College Street. 

15. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
2804 College Street. 

16. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
2208 Coventry Lane. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an amended Master Service Agreement and 
Statement of Work with Municode, LLC, subsidiary of CivicPlus, LLC, relative to City code 
supplementation. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with Elise Bovy with Northeast 
Iowa Area Agency on Aging relative to providing Tai Chi classes at the Recreation Center. 

2



Page 3 of 3 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
between Orion Cedar Falls IA, LLC and Reel Deal Holdings, LLC, pursuant to the terms of the 
Agreement for Private Development with Ryan Companies US, Inc. relative to the transfer of 
ownership of property located at 1100 Technology Parkway. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract with Family Management Financial 
Solutions relative to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for service agencies. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract with The Salvation Army relative to 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for service agencies. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Amendment Number Three to the Subaward 
Agreement with the Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management Division 
(HSEMD) for an extension of the Voluntary Property Acquisition Program funded through the Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program relative to the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout. 

23. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Blacktop Service 
Company for the 2022 Seal Coat Project, and approving and authorizing the transfer of funds from 
the Street Construction Fund to the Street Repair Fund. 

24. Resolution receiving and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of Peterson Contractors Inc., in 
the amount of $29,997,049.50, being the only bid received for the Main Street Reconstruction 
Project. 

25. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $6,279,130.00, being the lowest bid received for the Cedar River 
Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements Project.  

26. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the 
Cedar River Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements Project. (contingent upon 
approval of previous item) 

27. Resolution setting January 3, 2023 as date of public hearing on the proposed FY2023-FY2028 
Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 

Allow Bills and Claims 

28. Allow Bills and Claims for December 19, 2022. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Executive Session 

29. Executive Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy 
with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its 
disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that 
litigation. 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, DECEMBER 5, 2022 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

54059 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of November 21, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54060 -  Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, commented on Council Goal Setting, opposing 

TIF for the mall and additional funding for the CFHS pool, and supporting funding 
for a public safety study. 

  
54061 - It was moved by Harding to reconsider action taken relative to a resolution 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development, 
and approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying certain 
city-owned real estate to CF Storage, L.L.C.  The motion failed for lack of a 
second.  

 
54062 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3020, 

amending Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to use of consumer fireworks within the City limits, be passed 
upon its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield. Nay: Dunn. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3020 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
54063 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3021, 

amending Section 18-23(5), Powers and duties of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing 2/3 majority vote 
required by City Council to approve amendments to the City's comprehensive 
plan that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission, be passed 
upon its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield. Nay: Dunn, 
Schultz, Harding. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3021 duly 
passed. Mayor announced his intention to veto the ordinance. 

 
54064 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3022, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing 
the 2/3 majority vote required by City Council to approve zoning amendments 
that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission, be passed upon 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield. Nay: Dunn, 
Schultz, Harding. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3022 duly 
passed. Mayor announced his intention to veto the ordinance. 

 
54065 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the following items on 

the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the resignation of Mary Carlson as a member of the Visitors & 
Tourism Board. 

 Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) Jim O'Loughlin, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/2025. 
b) Lindi Roelofse, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/2025. 

 Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to 
certified lists for the following positions: 
a) Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Specialist. 
b) Engineering Technician I. 

 Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of October 2022. 

 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Cedar Falls Family Restaurant, 2627 Center Street, Class B beer - renewal. 
b) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - 
renewal. 
c) Lifestyle Inn, 5826 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
d) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
e) Hy-Vee Fast and Fresh, 6527 University Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine 
– change in ownership. 
f) Hansen's Dairy, 123 East 18th Street, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

 Motion carried unanimously. 

54066 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield to receive and file a 
communication from the Mayor relative to the appointment of Noah Hackbart as 
Student Liaison, term ending 04/30/2023. Mr. Hackbart introduced himself, 
commented and announced that Northern Iowa Student Government meetings 
are held on Tuesdays at 6 PM. Following a question by the Northern Iowan 
Executive Editor Nixson Benitez, and responses by Councilmember Dunn, Mr. 
Hackbart and Mayor Green, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
54067 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 
 

 Resolution #22,985, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
The Greg Prothman Company to perform recruitment services relative to the 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

position of Principal Engineer. 

 Resolution #22,986, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
IFC Studios relative to the Cedar Falls Public Library Branding Project. 

 Resolution #22,987, approving and authorizing execution of a Subaward 
Agreement with the Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency 
Management Division (HSEMD) for Building Resilient Infrastructure and 
Communities (BRIC) Program grant funding relative to Stormwater Resilience 
Planning. 

 Resolution #22,988, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for grant 
administration services of an Iowa Department of Homeland Security and 
Emergency Management Division (HSEMD) Building Resilient Infrastructure and 
Communities (BRIC) Program grant relative to Stormwater Resilience Planning. 

 Resolution #22,989, approving and authorizing execution of two Vacancy 
Agreements, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #22,990, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Boulder Contracting, LLC for the 2021 Street Patching Project. 

 Resolution#22,991, approving and authorizing execution of a Contracted 
Education Proposal with Black Hawk County Conservation (BHCC) thru a 
partnership with Hartman Reserve Nature Center to provide public outreach and 
educational programs relative to improving water quality for the period of July 1, 
2023 - June 30, 2026. 

 Resolution #22,992, approving and authorizing execution of an Amended and 
Substituted Storm Water Maintenance and Repair Agreement with Tooth Trio, 
LLC relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for 9219 
University Avenue.  

 Resolution #22,993, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with Community United Child Care Centers 
(CUCCC) relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for 5109 
Nordic Drive. 

 Resolution #22,994, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with D & D Midwest Investments, L.L.C. 
relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for 5630 
Westminster Drive. 

 Resolution #22,995, setting December 19, 2022 as the date of public hearing on 
a proposal to grant city-owned real estate to Cedar Falls Utilities by means of a 
non-exclusive permanent easement for the relocation of utilities. 

 Resolution #22,996, determining the necessity, and setting December 13, 2022 
as the date of consultation and January 3, 2023 as the date of public hearing on 
a proposed Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan for a proposed urban 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

renewal area. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,985 through #22,996 duly 
passed and adopted. 

54068 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #22,997, 
approving and adopting amendments to Personnel Policy 809: Disciplinary 
Procedures, for the City of Cedar Falls, be adopted. Following comments and 
questions by Councilmembers Ganfield and Harding, and Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch 
Street, and responses by Human Resources Manager Schindel, Mayor Green 
and City Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, 
Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: Sires, Ganfield. Motion Carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #22,997 duly passed and adopted. 

54069 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that a resolution approving 
and adopting amendments to Personnel Policy 903: Grievance Procedure, for 
the City of Cedar Falls, be adopted. Following comments and questions by 
Councilmembers Ganfield, Harding, deBuhr, Sires, Kruse and Schultz, and Rick 
Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, and responses by City Attorney Rogers and Mayor 
Green, it was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to amend the motion to 
replace City Administrator with Finance and Business Operations Committee in 
Section 4(d) and restore closed session in 4(f). Following comments by 
Councilmembers Ganfield, Harding, Dunn, deBuhr, Schultz and Kruse, and Rick 
Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, and responses by Mayor Green and City Attorney 
Rogers, the motion carried 5-2, with Dunn and Harding voting Nay. Following 
comments by City Attorney Rogers, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by 
deBuhr to postpone consideration of the amended policy until the December 19, 
2022 City Council meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

54070 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,998, 
approving and adopting a Recreation Fee Schedule to become effective January 
1, 2023, be adopted. Following comments and questions by Councilmembers 
Schultz, Dunn, Ganfield, deBuhr, Kruse, Sires and Harding, Parks & Recreation 
Commissioner Erik Blanchard, 2009 Four Winds Drive, and Rick Sharp, 1623 
Birch Street, and responses by Recreation and Community Programs Manager 
Soppe, Mayor Green and Public Safety Director Berte, it was moved by Ganfield 
and seconded by Sires to postpone discussion until the December 19, 2022 City 
Council meeting to include additional information with a family pass at a 
discounted rate. Following a comment by Community Development Director 
Sheetz, the motion failed 3-4, with Dunn, deBuhr, Kruse and Harding voting Nay. 
The Mayor then put the question on the original motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. 
Nay: Sires, Schultz, Ganfield. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,998 duly passed and adopted. 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

54071 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 
December 5, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

   
54072 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole consideration of an ordinance regarding longevity of members on boards 
and commissions. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers 
Kruse, deBuhr and Harding, and responses by City Attorney Rogers and Mayor 
Green, the motion carried 5-2, with Harding and Dunn voting Nay. 

 
54073 -     It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding to adjourn to Executive 

Session to discuss confidential records per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(a) to 
review or discuss records which are required or authorized by state or federal law 
to be kept confidential. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
     The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:56 P.M. 
 
     Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 10:24 P.M.   
   
54074 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the meeting be adjourned 

at 10:25 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

8

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO:   Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM:  Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE:  December 12, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V  
    Public Hearing on CFU Easement 
     
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct West Viking Road along the north side 
of the West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V from Union Road to Production Drive. 
Part of this design includes the filling of the southern ditch to modify this road from its 
current rural cross section to an updated urban cross section. As a result, the existing 
Cedar Falls Utilities overhead electrical transmission lines will be impacted. In good 
effort to remain proactive, Cedar Falls Utilities is requesting a non-exclusive 10-foot-
wide easement along the north edge of the West Viking Road Industrial Park to bury the 
electric utility. This would prevent any electrical conflicts during the reconstruction and 
ditch filling of the proposed roadway.  
 
An Easement agreement has been prepared by Cedar Falls Utilities to convey the 
northerly 10 feet of the West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V for the purpose of 
protecting their buried electrical utility. The non-inclusive nature of this agreement still 
allows the City of Cedar Falls the unrestricted ability to construction public infrastructure 
in this area.  
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize this Easement 
Agreement.  The public hearing offers an opportunity for the public, and any other 
involved parties, to comment on the Easement. 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 David Wicke, City Engineer, PE 

9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.

claypoolb
Snapshot



 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by and return to: 

Garrett Ramthun, Cedar Falls Utilities, P.O. Box 769, Cedar Falls, IA 50613-0769, 1-319-268-5375 
 

 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

EASEMENT  
FILE NO. 

That the undersigned, hereinafter "Grantor", for good and valuable consideration to Grantor, receipt of 

which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant unto the City of Cedar Falls, for the use and benefit of 

The Municipal Electric and Communications Utilities of the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, 

hereinafter called "Cedar Falls Utilities", its successors and assigns, and to any other established entity 

which regularly furnishes communication, data or media services which are delivered or available on a city 

wide basis, a perpetual non-exclusive easement with the right, privilege and authority to construct, 

reconstruct, operate, maintain and remove an electric or communication line or lines, wires, transformers 

and other fixtures, over, across, upon and under the following described real estate owned by the Grantor 

and located in the County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, to-wit: 

 

Easement Description 

 

The North Ten (10) feet of Outlot “Y”, Tract “A” and Outlot “Z”, West Viking Road Industrial 

Park Phase V, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 
 

Parcels: 891434127001 & 891434101011 

 
Together with the right to Cedar Falls Utilities, its successors and assigns, of ingress and egress to, from 

and over said real estate for doing anything necessary or useful for the enjoyment of the rights herein 

granted; also, except for public infrastructure installed by or for Grantor, the privilege of removing at 

anytime any structure or obstruction which may interfere with the proper maintenance and operation of 

utilities located thereon; together with all rights and privileges required for the full enjoyment of the rights 

herein granted.  Any conflict with public infrastructure installed at any time by or for Grantor shall be 

resolved at Cedar Falls Utilities’ cost.  

 

Dated this  day of  , A.D. 2022. 
 

GRANTOR 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

By:   

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

STATE OF IOWA 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK} ss 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on  , 2022, by Robert M. 

Green, as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

 

 

Notary Public – State of Iowa 

11

Item 2.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET | CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: December 13, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Mayoral Veto of Ordinances #3021 and #3022 

1. By the authority granted in Iowa Code 380.5 and Section 287(b)(3) of the City Code of 

Ordinances, I am vetoing Ordinance #3021 and #3022. These ordinances passed via 4-

to-3 majority votes at the City Council meeting on December 5, 2022. These ordinances 

would remove the ‘two-thirds’ majority requirement to overrule Planning & Zoning 

Commission recommendations regarding amendments to the comprehensive plan, the 

zoning map, and zoning regulations.  

2. The current balance of authority has served Cedar Falls well for decades. Mandated by 

Iowa Code 414.6, the Planning and Zoning Commission in every city is the public body 

entrusted to develop zoning expertise and to weigh the pros and cons of zoning changes 

with a focus on long-term benefits for the city. The recommendations from this appointed 

body should be free from (or at least minimize) the undue influence of short-term political 

pressures. The commission’s intended purpose is to be an apolitical body of informed 

citizens willing to put significant effort into thoughtful and well-articulated 

recommendations to the City Council for final consideration and approval. Were this not 

the intent of the Legislature, then all zoning matters could theoretically be brought directly 

to the City Council for  the most politically expedient decision, without having to first pass 

through a ‘planning and zoning commission’ gateway. 

3. There is no inherent requirement that a simple council majority should prevail in zoning 

matters. Of Iowa’s fifty largest cities, fully half maintain a more stringent requirement than 

Cedar Falls --  a ‘three-fourths’ requirement to override planning and zoning commission 

recommendations for the comprehensive plan, zoning map updates and/or regulation text 

changes.  Two other cities maintain the lower-threshold ‘two-thirds’ requirement, including 

Cedar Falls. This means that a simple majority override is not prevalent among Iowa 

cities containing populations between 7.5K (Webster City) and 214K (Des 

Moines).  Notably, Ankeny, Waukee, Clive, and Grinnell each require a far more stringent 

‘four-fifths’ override.  While we certainly should not base our direction solely on what other 

municipalities in Iowa are doing, we would also be unwise to disregard the collective 

experience of these cities in how they have chosen to order their zoning processes. 

12

Item 3.



4. I do agree that a three-fourths requirement (wherein any overrides would need 6 of 7 

councilors in support) would be overly restrictive. On the other hand, a simple majority (4 

of 7 councilors) appears overly lax. A simple majority would risk destabilizing the city’s 

zoning regulations by enabling wholesale modifications to the code every other year 

(regardless of Planning and Zoning Commission input) through just a single council seat 

change every election. 

5. Retention of the two-thirds majority requirement will ensure that the zoning maps and 

regulations of the city enjoy considerable support from the Council, and would ensure that 

any Council override would overcome a mayoral veto. Such stability and predictability is 

essential for a healthy economic development climate in any city.  My understanding is 

that developers are less concerned with what the zoning regulations are, than that they 

are clear, consistent, predictable, steady, and evenly enforced. The two-thirds majority is 

core to this stability strategy. 

6.  A decreased threshold would only embolden those on council seeking to enact changes 

that run counter to the P&Z’s well-considered recommendations, knowing that the 

councilor only needs to convince three fellow councilors to side with them, rather than 

four. Such an approach would increase the potential for arbitrary decision-making, 

potentially benefiting a small number of people or special interests rather than the 

community as a whole.  A key benefit of the two-thirds (or three-fourths, or four-fifths) 

majority is to limit the potential for this abuse. Moreover, requiring five councilors to agree 

to an override ensures that at least one of these members will be up for re-election within 

two years, providing healthy public accountability for their decision to countermand the 

Planning and Zoning Commission.  

7. I do not believe that the current two-thirds majority presents an overly taxing threshold for 

an override of perceived “bad recommendations” by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. Any ill-considered or obviously faulty decision from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission (whether through a conflict of interest, personal grudges, 

misinformation/disinformation, or other cause) can still be corrected through the 

agreement of five councilors, and four councilors together can vote to prevent any 

offending members’ reappointment at the end of the five-year term.  Four councilors could 

also prevent an undesired citizen from being appointed in the first place. Finally, four 

councilors could vote to change Sec. 18-21 to reduce term lengths, increasing the 

frequency that a member’s suitability for continued service can be evaluated. In short, 

other remedies exist for addressing the council’s stated concerns --- remedies that would 

be wiser than reducing the override threshold from ‘two-thirds’ to ‘simple majority’.  

8. For these reasons, I am vetoing Ordinance #3021 and #2022 and I respectfully request 

that the City Council uphold this decision. 

 

 Xc:  City Administrator 

           City Clerk 

  Chair, Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

### 13

Item 3.



From: Eashaan Vajpeyi <  
Sent: Wednesday, November 30, 2022 6:50 PM 
To: Rob Green <Rob.Green@cedarfalls.com> 
Cc: Bailey Schindel <Bailey.Schindel@cedarfalls.com> 
Subject: HRC position  
  
CAUTION: This email originated outside the City of Cedar Falls email system. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
 
 
Mayor, I am writing to submit my resignation from the Commission effective 12/31/22. I am trying to 
prioritize work and other activities. I feel like I’ve implemented the priorities I had when I rejoined and 
my contributions to the commission have been maximized. 
 
Thank you for the appointment and I look forward to future opportunities to serve. 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

14

Item 4.

mailto:Rob.Green@cedarfalls.com
mailto:Bailey.Schindel@cedarfalls.com


 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: December 13, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Reappointment of Housing Commissioners 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §11-1: Housing Commission 

  (b) CFD 1201.22: Process for Appointment to City Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), and 

process set forth in reference (b) I hereby nominate the following individuals for 

reappointment to the Housing Commission for two-year terms: 

 

a. Ms. Helen Pearce – term ends 12/31/2024 

b. Mr. Craig Fairbanks – term ends 12/31/2024 

 

2. These two candidates have carried out their commissioner roles ably and have met 

minimum attendance requirements. My thanks go to these two citizens for their willingness 

to serve the public through this important role. 

  

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director of Community Development 

  Planning and Community Services Manager 

  Housing Commission Chair 

 

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

15

Item 5.



16

Item 5.



17

Item 5.



18

Item 5.



19

Item 5.



20

Item 5.



21

Item 5.



22

Item 5.



23

Item 5.



24

Item 5.



25

Item 5.



26

Item 5.



MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

December 5, 2022 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 5:50 p.m. on December 5, 2022, with the following 
Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl 
Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members from all City Departments and members 
of the community attended in person.   
 
Finance & Business Operations Committee: 
Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Finance & Business Operations 
Committee Agenda, Grow Cedar Valley Update and introduced Grow Cedar Valley CEO, Cary Darrah. Ms. 
Darrah discussed two new hires for Grow Cedar Valley, DEI Summit, Placemaking, Destination Iowa, 
creating engagement for community members, government affairs and Grow Cedar Valley office relocation. 
Ms. Darrah introduced Vice President of Economic Development, Lisa Skubal. Ms. Skubal gave a marketing 
and business growth report including: Expansion of businesses, shovel ready land, lead generation 
campaign, site selection consultants, association members of the guild, conducting existing business visits, 
marketing trip to Europe and the Cedar Valley Manufacturers Association. Ms. Skubal introduced Workforce 
Solutions Coordinator, Stephanie Detweiler. Ms. Detweiler gave an overview of the Live the Valley 
Campaign, the Livability Cedar Valley magazine, and the coaster campaign.  Ms. Detweiler discussed her 
networking in the community with human resource professionals and attracting individuals to the Cedar 
Valley. Councilmembers discussed the airport advocacy and marketing Cedar Falls Utilities high speed 
internet. 
 
Committee of the Whole: 
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the Committee of the Whole 
Agenda, Council Policy on Official City Proclamations and introduced Mayor Green. Mayor Green gave an 
overview that included: Mayor no longer initiating proclamations, city council will approve all proclamations 
and proclamations will no longer be read at council meetings. Under item 2. Proclamation submission, C., it 
will read, “Requests must be submitted to the city at least 30 days prior to the desired proclamation date”. 
Under item 3. Proclamation approval, A., it will read, “The mayor shall submit all requested proclamations for 
council approval under a single cover memo”. It was moved by Schultz and seconded by Dunn to move 
forward with the Council Policy on Official City Proclamations. The motion was put to vote. Aye: deBuhr, 
Dunn, Harding, Kruse, Ganfield, Shultz, and Sire; Nay: None. 
 
Chair Harding introduced the second item on the Committee of the Whole Agenda, Council Policy on Public 
Awards and Recognition and introduced Mayor Green. Mayor Green explained these are public awards, with 
costs and this will clarify the procedure. Mayor explained this policy would establish a new Key to the City 
award and details various city awards for outstanding public achievement and service to Cedar Falls. 
Councilmembers discussed who determines whom receives awards; it was determined that under The Keys 
to the City (3., B., 1.) that Mayor will consult with Councilmembers. It was moved by Ganfield and seconded 
by Kruse to move forward with the Council Policy on Public Awards and Recognition with amendments 
discussed. The motion was put to vote. Aye: deBuhr, Dunn, Harding, Kruse, Ganfield, Shultz, and Sire; Nay: 
None. 
 
Chair Harding introduced the third item on the Committee of the Whole Agenda, Council Policy on Boards 
and Commissions Interviews and introduced Mayor Green. Mayor Green gave an overview of the existing 
process. Councilmembers discussed the interview process of potential Boards and Commission candidates 
and conducting interviews of candidates at the Standing Committee meetings and agreed to not conduct 
formal interviews. Instead, new committee member(s) will be invited and recognized during the approval of 
their appointment at the City Council meeting. Councilmembers decided to end the practice of interviewing 
Boards and Commission members at the Standing Committee meetings. It was moved by Ganfield and 
seconded by Kruse to move forward with inviting new committee member(s) to City Council meetings to 
participate during their appointment. The motion was put to vote. Aye: deBuhr, Dunn, Harding, Kruse, 
Ganfield, Shultz, and Sire; Nay: None. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:47 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

27

Item 6.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  December 12, 2022 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no 
records that would prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Rancho Chico, 618 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

b) Wild Hare American Bar and Grill, 2512 Whitetail Drive, Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Golf Lab, 201 Washington Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - new. 

28

Item 7.



   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor  

 

         FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: November 23, 2022 

  
 SUBJECT: Approval of New Official City Proclamations Policy (CFD 1127) 

1. My study of the Mayor’s duties has led me to conclude that the City Code of Ordinances 

does not grant the Mayor the authority to independently issue official proclamations, and 

so I am immediately discontinuing this practice. 

2. I do believe that official proclamations are an important communications tool for 

expressing the opinions, support, and recognition of the local government on noteworthy 

anniversaries and other special dates. To properly enable these proclamations to be 

generated, I’ve created a new proclamation process with the help and advice of Jacque 

Danielsen (City Clerk) and Amanda Huisman (Communications Specialist).   

3. Key aspects of this this new process are: 

a. I will no longer initiate proclamations.  Many of the proclamations I read last 

year were not requested by citizens in the current year, but often were pulled 

from the previous year’s file and re-issued.  I anticipate that ending this practice 

will drop the proclamation count by at least half. 

b. The City Council will approve all city proclamations. These will be part of the 

consent calendar (all as a single item with cover memo). I will sign the 

proclamations once approved by council. 

c. I will no longer read proclamations during council meetings. Instead, I will 

work with the submitter for other suitable venues. 

4. In this new process, Amanda Huisman will take on the primary role of quality-checking 

incoming proclamations and forwarding them to the City Council for approval in the 

regular meeting; I will still have the role of approving their inclusion in the council packet 

for your consideration per Section 187-2(b)2 of the City Code of Ordinances. 

5. Thank you for your consideration of this new policy, which is similar to proclamations 

processes for other cities. Please contact me with any questions. 

Encl: (1) CFD 1127: Council Policy – Official City Proclamations 

Xc:  City Administrator 

### 29

Item 9.



CFD 1127.XX:  Council Policy – Official City Proclamations CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1127: Council Policy – Official City Proclamations  
Approved XXXXX XX, XXXX by the Cedar Falls City Council  

PURPOSE:  

To provide guidance for the submission, approval, and publishing of official city proclamations. 

POLICY:   

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to recognize important civic events and other special 

occasions with an official proclamation. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Submission Criteria. 

A. Proclamations may be requested by: 

1). Residents of the City of Cedar Falls. 

2). Organizations with direct connections to Cedar Falls.  

3). City of Cedar Falls council members or employees. 

B. Proclamations should have a demonstrable tie to Cedar Falls, which may include significant 

accomplishments by residents, noteworthy historical anniversaries, “Year of…” 

declarations, or other special commemorations of days, weeks or months by Cedar Falls 

residents and organizations. 

C. The City of Cedar Falls reserves the right to deny any proclamation request. 

2. Proclamation Submission. 

A. Information required for an official city proclamation request are: 

1). Submitter Name (plus title / organizational affiliation as appropriate). 

2). Submitter Mailing Address and E-mail Address. 

3). Date of Need for Signed Proclamation. 

4). Desired Presentation Venue (Mayor’s Office, City Studio, Site Visit, other). 

5). Draft Proclamation Text (including 3-6 Whereas Clauses and a Therefore Clause). 

B. Requests must be e-mailed to proclamations@cedarfalls.com at least 30 days prior to the 

desired proclamation date. Approval well in advance will allow the greatest flexibility for 

scheduling a video shoot or other special publishing arrangement. 

C. The city reserves the right to edit proclamations for clarity and brevity, and will normally 

30

Item 9.



CFD 1127.XX:  Council Policy – Official City Proclamations CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

consult with the submitter regarding any substantive changes. 

3. Proclamation Approval. 

A. Proclamation requests shall be considered for council approval under a single cover memo 

in the regular council meeting consent calendar. 

B. Proclamations shall not normally be read aloud during council meetings, in the interest of 

council meeting efficiency. 

4. Proclamation Publication. 

A. After approval by the City Council, the Mayor shall sign the final formal proclamation 

document under the city seal within a formal presentation folder. 

B. The Mayor shall promptly return the signed proclamation to the submitter, and will normally 

offer a photo opportunity in the Mayor’s Office, a site visit, social media broadcast, or other 

location and date/time as agreed upon by the submitter and Mayor. 

5. Emergency Proclamations exempted.  

A. As described in Iowa Code 372.14, the Mayor may govern the city by proclamation when a 

time of emergency has been determined to exist, within the limits imposed by City Code 

Section 16-133.   

B. Such proclamations shall be exempt from the procedures contained in this policy document.  

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 

XX/XX/XX 

31

Item 9.



   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor  

 

         FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: November 23, 2022 

  
 SUBJECT: Approval of New Public Awards and Recognition Policy (CFD 1128) 

1. The city currently has no formal guidance on the recognition of citizens by the city; to 

remedy this, I am sending for your consideration a policy document which details the 

various City awards for outstanding public achievement and service to Cedar Falls by 

the general public. Significantly, this policy would establish a new Key to the City 

award, which would be reserved for only the highest accomplishments.   

2. I believe the various levels of recognition will meet the needs of the city, but additional 

awards could be generated if needed.  I have budgeted $1290 for all awards in FY2024 

($800 of which is reserved to support the existing Mayors Volunteer Service Awards). 

3. Thank you in advance for your consideration of approval. I am looking forward to 

formalizing the awards process to ensure that citizens receive the recognition they 

deserve for their meritorious actions.   

4. Please contact me with any questions, concerns or suggestions for future versions. 

Encl: (1) CFD 1128: Council Policy – Public Awards and Recognition 

Xc:  City Administrator 

### 

32

Item 10.



CFD 1128.XX:  Council Policy – Public Awards and Recognition      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 4 

CFD 1128: Council Policy – Public Awards and Recognition 
Approved XXXX XX, XXXX the Cedar Falls City Council  

PURPOSE:  

To establish standards and guidance for recognition of citizens through official city awards.  

POLICY:   

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to celebrate the meritorious actions of citizens through 

special formal recognition, to include plaques, trophies and other awards purchased with city funds 

budgeted for that purpose. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Applicability.  

A. These procedures apply to recognition of members of the public, city elected officials, and 

boards and commission members. 

B. City employees will be recognized under a separate policy to be maintained and approved 

by the City Administrator. 

2. Funding.  

A. Funding for public awards and recognition items shall be paid through the Mayor’s budget.   

B. No financial awards or other similar gratuities are authorized as part of this program. 

3. Awards, Precedence and Requirements.   

A. The awards program is designed to allow for the appropriate recognition of members of the 

public across a broad spectrum of achievement, from minor to truly exceptional.   

B. Award levels are as follows, in order of precedence from highest to lowest: 

1). The Key to the City.  

a. The Mayor may award the Key to the City, after consultation with the City Council, 

to any individual or group reflecting great credit on Cedar Falls through nationally or 

globally noteworthy actions, or who otherwise demonstrates extreme merit.   

b. A presentation ceremony shall be arranged by the Mayor’s Office at City Hall or 

other appropriate location, for public and media attendance. The Mayor shall issue 

the award on behalf of the City and People of Cedar Falls. 

c. A record will be kept of all recipients of the Key to the City. 

33

Item 10.



CFD 1128.XX:  Council Policy – Public Awards and Recognition      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 4 

 
 

Key to the City Engraved Plaque – approximately $120  
(Photo to be replaced with local example once produced) 

2). Cedar Falls Representative Citizen.  

a. Each year the City of Cedar Falls recognizes one outstanding citizen as the Cedar 

Falls Representative Citizen of the Year.   

b. This award, implemented in 1964, is determined each March by a special 

committee composed of prior Representative Citizens (as voting members) and the 

Mayor (as non-voting member).   

c. The recipient is publicly recognized at the annual John Milton Overman Business & 

Industry Awards. 

3). Cedar Falls Honorary Resident.  

a. Any non-resident may be made an honorary resident of Cedar Falls by the Mayor, 

in recognition of the non-resident’s spirit of community, connectedness, and affinity 

for Cedar Falls. Recipients will receive a plaque and a wallet card.  

b. No legal rights are accorded with this recognition, though the City Council may 

choose to grant special privileges to honorary residents.  

4). Distinguished Service Award.  

a. The Mayor may authorize a Distinguished Service Award, after consultation with the 

City Council, to any person performing exceptional service to the City and People of 

Cedar Falls for an extended period of time.  Specific actions which merit awarding a 

Distinguished Service Award include: 

(a) 20 years of service (combined) on City boards and commissions and/or as a 

member of the Cedar Falls City Council. 

34

Item 10.



CFD 1128.XX:  Council Policy – Public Awards and Recognition      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 4 

(b) Exemplary long-term performance while serving in an organization which 

directly benefits the people of Cedar Falls.  

b. The Distinguished Service Award shall be accompanied by a citation detailing the 

citizen’s service or actions which warrant the issuing of this award. 

5). Certificate of Merit.   

a. In cases of individual merit or service to the City, the Mayor may award a Certificate 

of Merit to a member of the public during the Special Presentations segment of a 

City Council Meeting.   

b. A citation will accompany the award to note the reason for the special recognition; 

this citation will be read by the Mayor during the presentation.  

c. Specific actions which merit a Certificate of Appreciation include: 

(a) Completion of service on City boards and commissions and/or as a member of 

the Cedar Falls City Council for a total of less than 20 years. 

(b) Completion of successful service as a neighborhood association leader. 

6). Mayors’ Volunteer Award and Top Teen Volunteer Award.  

a. The combined mayors of the Cedar Valley annually recognize top community 

volunteers from throughout the Cedar Valley. This program is administered through 

the Volunteer Center for Cedar Valley (VCCV).  

b. All nominees are recognized with a VCCV-provided certificate, and awardees 

receive a display trophy.  

7). Mayor’s Letter of Commendation.  

a. The mayor may provide a Mayor’s Letter of Commendation to recognize a citizen’s 

commendable achievement, without a special ceremony or plaque.  

b. The letter, on mayor letterhead, will be mailed in a standard city envelope to the 

recipient. 

8). Mayor’s Challenge Coin.  

a. The Mayor may award a coin in-person to any non-employee demonstrating 

significant initiative and community spirit. Due to the visibility / desirability of 

‘coining’ this recognition may be given in combination with any other award. 

35

Item 10.



CFD 1128.XX:  Council Policy – Public Awards and Recognition      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 4 

 

Mayor / Administrator Challenge Coin Front & Back (1.5” diameter) 
 

9). City of Cedar Falls Lapel Pin.   

a. Upon taking city elected or appointed office, public members will be recognized by 

the mayor with a City Service Lapel Pin. 

b. Upon request of the individual, longevity pins will additionally be awarded for 5, 10, 

15, or 20 years of service as an elected or appointed official (either continuous or 

non-continuous).  

  
City Service Lapel Pin (1/2” Square) 

ADOPTED  / AMENDED: 

XX/XX 

 

 

36

Item 10.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Human Resources Division 

 TO: Mayor Green, City Council 

 FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

 DATE: December 13, 2022 

  SUBJECT: Personnel Policy Changes 
 
 

Attached to this Memorandum please find proposed additions to the Personnel Policy Manual; Personnel 

Policies #223 Sexual Abuse Prevention and #608 Head Injury and Concussion.  On July 1, 2022, the City 

bound its liability insurance with Travelers.  In doing so, the City was aware of Travelers risk control 

recommendations, which are in place for the betterment of their customers.  It is important the City take 

notice and complete these recommendations in order to maintain a controlled premium and avoid the 

possibility of loss of coverage.  One of the recommendations was to formulate both a Sexual Abuse 

Prevention policy and a Concussion and Head Injury policy.  These policies will improve the City’s current 

safety program and help reduce and prevent potential losses.  Staff believes these policies to be all 

encompassing and included in the Personnel Policy Manual.   

 

Staff recommends approval of these personnel policy additions. Please feel free to contact HR Manager, 

Bailey Schindel, at 319-268-5531 if you have any questions.  

 

37

Item 11.



223:       Sexual Abuse Prevention 

Policy:      

           It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls that sexual abuse in the workplace or at any 

activity sponsored by the City shall not be permitted or allowed.  Mandatory procedures are set 

forth for those who have learned of or are a witness to sexual abuse. 

Comment: 

           (1)     Sexual Abuse Definition:  Sexual abuse takes the form of inappropriate sexual 

contact or interaction for the gratification of the actor.  Sexual abuse includes sexual assault, 

exploitation, molestation or injury.   It does not include sexual harassment, which is another form 

of behavior prohibited by the City. 

            (2)    Possible Signs of Sexual Abuse:  There are a number of “red flags” that suggest 

someone is being sexually abused.  Signs of sexual abuse may take the form of physical or 

behavioral evidence. 

(3)   Reporting Procedure:  Any representative of the City who learns of sexual abuse being 

committed in the workplace or at any activity sponsored by the City must immediately report it to 

his or her department head and to the Human Resources Division.  Representatives of the City may 

include employees, elected officials, volunteers and instructors and coaches.   

If the victim is an adult other than an elderly adult (age 60 or over), the Human Resources Manager 

or designee must immediately report the abuse to the police.  If the victim is an elderly adult or 

child, the Human Resources Manager or designee must immediately report the abuse to the DHS 

Abuse Hotline at 1-800-362-2178.  If the elderly adult or child is in imminent danger the Human 

Resources Manager or designee must immediately call 911.  The Human Resources Manager shall 

immediately notify appropriate family members of the victim of suspected child abuse. 

(4)    Investigation and Follow Up:  The City takes allegations of sexual abuse seriously.  

If an allegation is reported against a City employee, elected official or volunteer, the City will 

promptly, thoroughly and impartially investigate to determine whether there is a reasonable basis 

to believe that sexual abuse has been committed.  The City investigation may be undertaken by an 

internal team or the City may hire an independent third party. The City will cooperate fully with 

any investigation conducted by law enforcement or regulatory agencies, and the City may refer the 

complaint and the result of its own investigation to those agencies.  The City reserves the right to 

place the subject of the investigation on an involuntary leave of absence or reassign that person to 

responsibilities that do not involve personal contact with individuals.  To the fullest extent 

possible, but consistent with the City’s legal obligation to report suspected abuse to appropriate 

authorities, the City will endeavor to keep the identities of the alleged victims and investigation 

subject confidential, as allowed by law. 

38

Item 11.



If the investigation substantiates the allegation, this policy allows the City to impose discipline, up 

to and including termination of employment. 

             (5)    Retaliation Prohibited:  The City prohibits retaliation against anyone who in good 

faith reports sexual abuse, alleges that sexual abuse is being committed or participates in the 

investigation of alleged abuse.  Intentionally false or malicious accusations of sexual abuse are 

prohibited.  

Anyone who improperly retaliates against an individual who has made a good-faith allegation of 

sexual abuse, or intentionally provides false information to that effect, will be subject to discipline, 

up to and including termination of employment. 

 

Adopted  12/19/22 

Amended 

39

Item 11.



608:    CONCUSSION AND HEAD INJURY 

Policy: 

       The City of Cedar Falls recognizes the seriousness of concussions and head injuries and 

takes seriously its obligation to address concussions and head injuries suffered by employees in 

the course of employment and individuals participating in City-sponsored sports and other 

recreational activities.  This policy requires all City Departments to take steps to prevent and 

address concussions and head injuries suffered by employees and those individuals, including 

minors (under the age of 18), participating in City-sponsored activities. 

Comment: 

       (1)       A concussion is caused by a blow or motion to the head or body that causes the brain 

to move rapidly inside the skull.  The risk of catastrophic injuries or death is significant when a 

concussion or head injury is not properly evaluated and managed. 

       (2)       Concussions are a type of brain injury that can range from mild to severe and can 

disrupt the way the brain normally works.  Concussions can result from a fall or from individuals 

colliding with each other, the ground, or with obstacles.  Concussions can occur with or without 

loss of consciousness, but the vast majority of concussions occur without loss of consciousness. 

       (3)       Continuing to work or participate with a concussion or symptoms of a brain injury 

leaves a person especially vulnerable to greater injury and even death. 

     (a)       City employees as well as contractors and volunteers who are involved in City-

sponsored sports and recreational activities shall be provided with this policy, including 

the signs and symptoms of concussion or head injury, and shall become familiar with 

them. 

 

     (b)       Before a minor will be allowed to participate in a City-sponsored sports or 

recreational activity the minor’s parent or guardian shall be provided with a copy of this 

policy, including the signs and symptoms of concussion or head injury (attached), and 

shall acknowledge in writing understanding of this policy and acceptance of the terms of 

this policy. 

 

     (c)       Any employee or participant who demonstrates signs or symptoms of a 

concussion or head injury shall be immediately removed from work activities or 

participation in a City sponsored event. 

 

     (d)       All City employees, as well as contractors and volunteers who are involved in 

City-sponsored sports or recreational activities, and parents or guardians of minor 

40

Item 12.



participants, and the participants themselves, must report to a City representative any 

signs or symptoms of concussion or head injury observed in themselves or others. 

 

     (e)       The parent or guardian of a minor participant who shows signs or symptoms of 

a concussion or head injury shall be notified as soon as possible after the incident. 

 

     (f)       An employee or participant who has demonstrated signs or symptoms of 

concussion or of a head injury and has been removed from work activities or 

participation may not return to work activities or participation until: 

 

          i.       A minimum of twenty-four hours has passed since the last sign or 

symptom of concussion or head injury has occurred; and 

          ii.     The employee or participant has been evaluated by a licensed health care 

provider and the health care provider has in writing cleared return to work or 

participation. 

 

(4)       When in doubt, sit them out.  City employees, contractors and volunteers are not 

expected to make medical diagnoses or render medical treatment.  They are only required to use 

their best judgment based on observations and reports of signs or symptoms.  They should 

always err on the side of caution when deciding whether an employee or participant should be 

removed from work activities or participation. 

 

 

Adopted  12/19/22 
Amended 

 

   

 

        

   

41

Item 12.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Human Resources Division 

 TO: Mayor Green, City Council 

 FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

 DATE: December 12, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  903 Grievance Procedure Personnel Policy Amendment 
 
 

Attached to this Memorandum please find proposed amendments to Personnel Policy 903, Grievance 

Procedure, as discussed during the December 5, 2022 council meeting.  This memorandum will serve to 

generally explain the proposed changes.  Reference to the policy itself is recommended for review of 

specific language.  The changes are presented in red line form for ease of review. 

 

 

Personnel Policy 903, Grievance Procedure. 

As suggested during the December 5th council meeting, the following amendments were made to the 

policy: 

 

 Finance & Business Operations Committee of the City Council was added as the appeal body in 

step four of the grievance process  

 Reinstatement of closed session language as required for the grievance hearing in step four with 

the Finance & Business Operations Committee pursuant to Iowa Code § 21.5(1)(i) 

 

 

Please feel free to contact HR Manager, Bailey Schindel, at 319-268-5531 if you have any questions.  

 

42

Item 13.



903:     GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 

Policy: 

 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that employees should have an opportunity to 

present their work-related complaints and to appeal management decisions through a dispute 

resolution or grievance procedure.  The City will attempt to resolve promptly all grievances that 

are appropriate for handling under this policy. 

 

Comment: 

 

(1) An appropriate grievance is defined as an employee's expressed dissatisfaction 

concerning any interpretation or application of a work-related policy by management, supervisors, 

or other employees.  Examples of matters that may be considered appropriate grievances under 

this policy include: 

 

(a) A belief that City policies, practices, rules, regulations, or procedures have been 

applied in a manner arbitrarily detrimental to an employee; 

 

(b) Treatment considered unfair by an employee, such a coercion, reprisal, 

harassment, or intimidation; 

 

(c) Alleged discrimination because of race, color, sex, age, religion, national origin, 

military status, or disability; and 

 

(d) Improper or unfair administration of employee benefits or conditions of 

employment such as scheduling, vacations, fringe benefits, promotions, 

holidays,  job classification, pay band assignment, or seniority. 

 

(2) Employees covered by a union contract may not utilize this grievance procedure to 

the extent the matter is addressed by the union contract and/or its grievance procedures. 

  

(3) Employees should notify the City, in a timely fashion, of any grievance considered 

appropriate for handling under this policy.  The grievance procedure is the exclusive remedy for 

employees with appropriate grievances.  However, if an employee files a claim with the civil 

service commission based upon the same facts and circumstances, any grievance brought under 

this policy shall be immediately dismissed with no further action taken by the City.  

 

(4)     The grievance procedure has a maximum of four steps, but grievances may be 

resolved at any step in the process.  Grievances are to be fully processed until the employee is 

satisfied, does not file a timely appeal, or exhausts the right to appeal.  A decision becomes binding 

on all parties whenever the employee does not file a timely appeal or when a decision is made in 

the final step and the right to appeal no longer exists. 

 

 

(4) (5) Employees who believe they have an appropriate grievance shall proceed as                   Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

43

Item 13.



903:  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
 

 

 

2 

   follows: 

 

(a) Step One – Within five working days of the date of the event giving rise to 

the grievance, employee shall deliver the written grievance to the Division 

Manager.  The written grievance shall explicitly outline the (1) facts and 

background of the grievance; (2) alleged violation by management; (3) denied 

action/resolution.  The Division Manager shall, within five working days of 

receipt of the grievance, meet and discuss the grievance with the employee.  

The Division Manager shall provide a written response to the grievance within 

five working days of the meeting.  (If the grievance is against the Division 

Manager, the grievance may be filed with the Department Director.) 

 

(b) Step Two – If the Division Manager’s decision fails to resolve the grievance, 

the employee may, within five working days of receipt of the Division 

Manager’s decision, file a written appeal with the Department Director.  The 

Department Director shall, within five working days, meet and discuss the 

grievance with the employee. Within five working days of this meeting, the 

Department Director shall provide a written response to the employee.  (If the 

grievance is against the Department Director, or if Step One was handled by 

the Department Director, the grievance shall be filed with the City 

Administrator.) 

 

(c) Step Three – Within five working days of receipt of the Department 

Director’s response, the employee may appeal the decision to the Grievance 

Panel.  The Grievance Panel shall consist of the Mayor, the City 

Administrator and all Department Directors, or the Department Director’s 

designated alternate, with the exception of the Department Director involved 

in the grievance.  The Grievance Panel shall hold a hearing within 10 business 

days of receipt of the appeal, unless the time period is extended by the 

Grievance Panel for good cause.  The Grievance Panel will take the necessary 

steps to review and investigate the grievance and will issue a written, final and 

binding decision based upon the majority vote of those Panel members who 

heard the appeal.  If the grievance is filed by the City Administrator, it shall 

move directly to Step 4. 

 

(d) Step Four – Within five working days of receipt of the Grievance Panel’s 

response, the employee may appeal the decision to the Administration 

Committee of the City Council Finance & Business Operations Committee of 

the City Council.  The Administration Committee Finance & Business 

Operations Committee shall hold a hearing within fifteen business days of 

receipt of the appeal, unless the time period is extended by the Administration 

Committee Chair Finance & Business Operations Committee for good cause.  

The Administration Committee Finance & Business Operations Committee 

44

Item 13.



903:     GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

 

3 

will take the necessary steps to review and investigate the grievance and will 

issue a written, final, and binding decision. 

 

(e) Time frame for City response:  The time frame for the City’s response shall 

normally be five working days unless the City elects to extend the time frame 

in which to respond. The grieving party will be notified of any necessary time 

extensions. 

 

(f) Closed Session:  The grievance hearing in Step Four may be closed pursuant to 

Iowa Code § 21.5(1)(i).  The closed session will only be held upon an 

affirmative public vote of either two-thirds of the members of the body or all the 

members present at a meeting.  A closed session may be held only to the extent 

it is necessary to evaluate the professional competency of an individual whose 

appointment, hiring, performance or discharge is being considered when 

necessary to prevent needless and irreparable injury to that individual’s 

reputation and that individual requests a closed session. 

 

(6) The Finance & Business Operations Department Human Resources Manager will 

provide coordinate training and support to supervisors, managers, and department directors in 

dealing with employee grievances.  In addition, employees should be are encouraged to consult 

with the Human Resources Manager Finance & Business Operations Department, their 

supervisors, or other members of management, on a less formal basis regarding employee 

complaints or disputes when appropriate. 

 

(7) Final decisions on grievances will not be precedent-setting or binding on future 

grievances unless they are officially stated as City policy.  When appropriate, the decisions will 

be retroactive to the date of the employee's original grievance. 

 

(8) Information concerning an employee grievance is confidential.  Supervisors, 

managers, department directors, and other members of management who investigate a grievance 

are to discuss it only with those individuals who have a need to know about it or who supply 

necessary background information or advice.    

 

(9) Time spent by employees in grievance discussions with management during their 

normal working hours will be considered hours worked for pay purposes. 

 

(10) Employees are not to be penalized for proper use of the grievance procedure.  

However, it is not considered proper procedure if an employee raises grievances in bad faith or 

solely for the purpose of delay or harassment, or repeatedly raises meritless unfounded 

grievances.  Implementation of the grievance procedure by an employee does not limit the right 

of the City to proceed with any disciplinary action that is not in retaliation for the proper use of 

the grievance procedure. 

 

45

Item 13.



903:  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
 

 

 

4 

(11) The City may, at its discretion, refuse to proceed with any complaint it determines 

is improper under this policy. 

 

 
Amended 7/1/06, 6/1/15, 3/1/19, 1/6/20, 12/19/22 

46

Item 13.



47

Item 14.



48

Item 14.



49

Item 14.



50

Item 14.



51

Item 14.



52

Item 14.



53

Item 14.



54

Item 14.



55

Item 14.



56

Item 14.



57

Item 14.



58

Item 14.



59

Item 14.



60

Item 14.



61

Item 14.



62

Item 14.



63

Item 14.



64

Item 14.



65

Item 14.



66

Item 14.



67

Item 15.



68

Item 15.



69

Item 15.



70

Item 15.



71

Item 15.



72

Item 15.



73

Item 15.



74

Item 15.



75

Item 15.



76

Item 15.



77

Item 15.



78

Item 15.



79

Item 15.



80

Item 15.



81

Item 15.



82

Item 15.



83

Item 15.



84

Item 15.



85

Item 15.



86

Item 15.



87

Item 15.



88

Item 15.



89

Item 16.



90

Item 16.



91

Item 16.



92

Item 16.



93

Item 16.



94

Item 16.



95

Item 16.



96

Item 16.



97

Item 16.



98

Item 16.



99

Item 16.



100

Item 16.



101

Item 16.



102

Item 16.



103

Item 16.



104

Item 16.



105

Item 16.



106

Item 16.



107

Item 16.



   DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Finance / Public Records Division 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 FROM: Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 DATE: December 12, 2022 

 SUBJECT: City Code Supplements  

 
Municode, LLC (subsidiary of CivicPlus, LLC) has been providing updates to the City’s 
Code of Ordinances with quarterly code supplements since recodification of the Code in 
2019. Municode has informed us that they will be transitioning to an annual subscription 
fee in 2023 instead of billing for each code supplement. There are no other changes in 
the services being provided and the Code will continue to be supplemented on a 
quarterly basis. In reviewing previous invoices for supplements, the proposed annual 
subscription fee is in line with the average total annual cost of the quarterly invoices. 
The transition will happen in the next year regardless of whether we transition earlier or 
not, but they are providing a 20% discount for 2023 if we sign on before the end of the 
year. 
 
The City Attorney has reviewed the attached Statement of Work (SOW) and amended 
Master Services Agreement (MSA), and I am recommending that City Council approve 
the same. Please let me know if you have any questions regarding this matter.  Thank 
you.   

108

Item 17.



 
 

CivicPlus 
 

Master Services Agreement 
 

This Master Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) governs all Statements of Work (“SOW”) entered into by and between 

CivicPlus, LLC (“CivicPlus”) and the client entity identified on the SOW (“Client”). This Agreement governs the use and 

provision of any Services purchased by Client, as described in any signed SOW, and the effective date of this Agreement shall 

commence on the date of signature of the SOW (“Effective Date”). If a SOW has not been executed, then the Effective Date shall 

be determined as the start date of implementation of any software solution or codification services by CivicPlus for Client. 

CivicPlus and Client referredto herein individually as “Party” and jointly as “Parties”. 

 

Recitals 
 

I. WHEREAS, CivicPlus is engaged in the business of developing and providing access to proprietary community 

engagement and government content management software solutions, platforms and associated services (the “Services”); and 

 
II. WHEREAS, Client wishes to engage CivicPlus for the procurement of the Services and/or receive a license subscription 

for the ongoing use of the Services, as set forth in the SOW; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, Client and CivicPlus agree as follows: 

 

Agreement 
 

Term & Termination 

 

1. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall remain in full force and effect for as long as any SOW is 

in effect between CivicPlus and Client, or Services are being provided by CivicPlus to Client, unless terminated in accordance 

with this §1 or as otherwise provided in this Agreement (the “Term”). Either Party may terminate this Agreement or any SOW 

as set forth in such SOW, or at its discretion, effective immediately upon written notice to the other Party, if the other Party 

materially breaches any provision of this Agreement and does not substantially cure the breach within thirty (30) days after 

receiving notice of such breach. A delinquent Client account remaining past due for longer than 90 days is a material breach by 

Client and is grounds for CivicPlus termination. 

 
2. Upon termination of this Agreement or any SOW for any reason, (a) the licenses granted for such relevant SOW by §11 

below will terminate and Client shall cease all use of the CivicPlus Property and Services associated with the terminated SOW 

and (b) any amounts owed under outstanding invoices or future planned billing for the completed development and 

implementation of the Client’s Services, as defined in the SOW (“Project Development”), shall immediately become due in full 

and payable. Sections 7, 8, 10, 14, 15, 18, 29 -31, 39, and 40 will survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

3. At any time during the Term, CivicPlus may, immediately upon notice to Client, suspend access to any Service due to a 

threat to the technical security or technical integrity of the Services. 

 
Invoicing & Payment Terms 

 
4. Client will pay the amounts owed to CivicPlus for the Project Development, subscription and licensing, and annual hosting, 

support and maintenance services (“Annual Recurring Services”) in accordance with the payment schedule set forth on the 

applicable SOW. Invoices shall be sent electronically to the individual/entity designated in the SOW’s contact sheet that is 

109

Item 17.



required to be filled out and submitted by Client (the “Contact Sheet”). Client shall provide accurate, current and complete 

information of Client’s legal business name, address, email address, and phone number in the Contact Sheet upon submission of 

a signed SOW. Client will maintain and promptly update the Contact Sheet information if it should change. Upon Client’s request, 

CivicPlus will mail hard-copy invoices for a $5.00 convenience fee. 

 

5. Each SOW will state the amount of days from date of invoice payment is due. Unless otherwise limited by law, a finance 

charge of 1.5 percent (%) per month or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law, whichever is less, will be added to past 

due accounts from due date until paid. Payments received will be applied first to finance charges, then to the oldest outstanding 

invoice(s). If the Client's account exceeds 60 days past due, support will be discontinued until the Client's account is made current. 

If the Client's account exceeds 90 days past due, Annual Recurring Services will be discontinued, and the Client will no longer 

have access to the Services until the Client's account is made current. Client will be given 15 days’ notice prior to discontinuation 

of Services for non-payment. 

 

6. During the performance of services during Project Development, if a change that requires repeated efforts to previously 

approved work product and such change causes CivicPlus to incur additional expenses (i.e. airline change fees, resource hours, 

consultant fees, Client does not show up for scheduled meetings or trainings), Client agreesto reimburse CivicPlus for such fees, 

not to exceed $1,000 per CivicPlus employee. CivicPlus shall notify Client prior to incurringsuch expenses and shall only incur 

those expenses which are approved by Client. 

 

Ownership & Content Responsibility 

 
7. Upon full and complete payment of amounts owed for Project Development under the applicable SOW, Client will own the 

website graphic designs, webpage or Services content, module content, importable/exportable data, and archived information 

(“Client Content”) created by CivicPlus on behalf of Client pursuant to this Agreement. “Client Content” also includes any 

elements of text, graphics, images, photos, designs, artworks, logos, trademarks, services marks, and other materials or content 

which Client provides or inputs into any website, software or module in connection with any Services. Client Content excludes 

any content in the public domain; and any content owned or licensed by CivicPlus, whether in connection with providing Services 

or otherwise. 

 

8. Upon completion of the Project Development, Client will assume full responsibility for Client Content maintenance and 

administration. Client, not CivicPlus, shall have sole responsibility for the accuracy, quality, integrity, legality, reliability, 

appropriateness, and intellectual property ownership or right to use of all Client Content. Client hereby grants CivicPlus a 

worldwide, non-exclusive right and license to reproduce, distribute and display the Client Content as necessary to provide the 

Services. Client represents and warrants that Client owns all Client Content or that Client has permission from the rightful owner 

to use each of the elements of Client Content; and that Client has all rights necessary for CivicPlus to use the Client Content in 

connection with providing the Services. 

 

9. At any time during the term of the applicable SOW, Client will have the ability to download the Client Content and export 

the Client data through the Services. Client may request CivicPlus to perform the export of Client data and provide the Client 

data to Client in a commonly used format at any time, for a fee to be quoted at time of request and approved by Client. Upon 

termination of the applicable SOW for any reason, whether or not Client has retrieved or requested the Client data, CivicPlus 

reserves the right to permanently and definitively delete the Client Content and Client data held in the Services thirty (30) days 

following termination of the applicable SOW. During the thirty (30) day period following termination of the SOW, regardless of 

the reason for its termination, Client will not have access to the Services. 

 
10. Intellectual Property in the software or other original works created by or licensed to CivicPlus, including all software 

source code, documents, and materials used in the Services (“CivicPlus Property”) will remain the property of CivicPlus. 

CivicPlus Property specifically excludes Client Content. Client shall not (i) license, sublicense, sell, resell, reproduce, transfer, 

assign, distribute or otherwise commercially exploit or make available to any third party any CivicPlus Property in any way, 

except as specifically provided in the applicable SOW; (ii) adapt, alter, modify or make derivative works based upon any 

CivicPlus Property; (iii) create internet “links” to the CivicPlus Property software or “frame” or “mirror” any CivicPlus 

110

Item 17.



Property administrative access on any other server or wireless or internet-based device that may allow third party entities, other 

than Client, to use the Services; (iv) reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble or otherwise attempt to obtain the software 

source code to all or any portion of the Services; or (v) access any CivicPlus Property in order to (a) build a competitive product 

or service, (b) build a product using similar ideas, features, functions or graphics of any CivicPlus Property, or (c) copy any 

ideas, features, functions or graphics of any CivicPlus Property. The CivicPlus name, the CivicPlus logo, and the product and 

module names associated with any CivicPlus Property aretrademarks of CivicPlus, and no right or license is granted to use them 

outside of the licenses set forth in this Agreement. 

 

11. Provided Client complies with the terms and conditions herein, the relevant SOW, and license restrictions set forth in §10, 

CivicPlus hereby grants Client a limited, nontransferable, nonexclusive, license to access and use the CivicPlus Property 

associated with any valid and effective SOW, for the term of the respective SOW. 

 

12. All CivicPlus helpful information and user’s guides for the Services (“Documentation”) are maintained and updated 

electronically by CivicPlus and can be accessed through the CivicPlus “Help Center”. CivicPlus does not provide paper copies 

of its Documentation. Client and its Users are granted a limited license to access Documentation as needed. Client shall not copy, 

download, distribute, or make derivatives of the Documentation. 

 

13. Client acknowledges that CivicPlus may continually develop, alter, deliver, and provide to the Client ongoing innovation 

to the Services, in the form of new features and functionalities. CivicPlus reserves the right to modify the Services from time to 

time. Any modifications or improvements to the Services listed on the SOW will be provided to the Client at no additional 

charge. In the event that CivicPlus creates new products or enhancements to the Services (“New Services”), and Client desires 

these New Services, then Client will have to pay CivicPlus the appropriate fee for the access to and use of the New Services. If 

Client disputes any change, then CivicPlus shall use its reasonable best efforts to resolve the dispute. 

 

14. CivicPlus in its sole discretion, may utilize all comments and suggestions, whether written or oral, furnished by Client to 

CivicPlus in connection with its access to and use of the Services (all reports, comments and suggestions provided by Client 

hereunder constitute, collectively, the “Feedback”). Client hereby grants to CivicPlus a worldwide, non-exclusive, irrevocable, 

perpetual, royalty-free right and license to incorporate the Feedback in the CivicPlus products and services. 

 

Indemnification 

 
15. Unless prohibited by the law of Client’s state, the Parties shall defend, indemnify and hold the other Party, its partners, 

employees, and agents harmless from and against any and all third party lawsuits, claims, demands, penalties, losses, fines, 

liabilities, damages, and expenses, including attorney’s fees, of any kind, without limitation, arising out of the negligent actions 

and omissions, or intentionally malicious actions or omissions of the indemnifying Party or its affiliates, partners, employees, 

and agents, directly associated with this Agreement and the installation and ongoing operations of Services contemplated by the 

SOW. This section shall not apply to the extent that any lawsuits, claims, demands, penalties, losses, fines, liabilities, damages, 

and expenses is caused by the negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the indemnified Party. 

 

Responsibilities of the Parties 

 
16. CivicPlus will not be liable for any act, omission of act, negligence or defect in the quality of service of any underlying 

carrier, licensor or other third-party service provider whose facilities or services are used in furnishing any portion of the Service 

received by the Client. 

 
17. CivicPlus will not be liable for any failure of performance that is caused by or the result of any act or omission by Client or 

any entity employed/contracted on the Client’s behalf. During Project Development, Client will be responsive and cooperative 

with CivicPlus to ensure the Project Development is completed in a timely manner. 

 
18. Client agrees that it is solely responsible for any solicitation, collection, storage, or other use of end-user’s personal data on 

any Service provided by CivicPlus. Client further agrees that CivicPlus has no responsibility for the use or storage of end-users’ 

111

Item 17.



personal data in connection with the Services or the consequences of the solicitation, collection, storage, or other use by Client 

or by any third party of personal data. 

 
19. Client is responsible for all activity that occurs under Client's accounts by or on behalf of Client. Client agrees to (a) be 

solely responsible for all designated and authorized individuals chosen by Client (“User”) activity, which must be in accordance 

with this Agreement and the CivicPlus Terms of Use; (b) be solely responsible for Client data; (c) obtain and maintain during the 

term all necessary consents, agreements and approvals from end-users, individuals or any other third parties for all actual or 

intended uses of information, data or other content Client will use in connection with the Services; (d) use commercially 

reasonable efforts to prevent unauthorized access to, or use of, any User’s log-in information and the Services, and notify 

CivicPlus promptly of any known unauthorized access or use of the foregoing; and (e) use the Services only in accordance with 

applicable laws and regulations. 

 

20. The Parties shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, treaties, regulations, and conventions in 

connection with its use and provision of any of the Services or CivicPlus Property. 

 

21. CivicPlus shall not be responsible for any act or omission of any third-party vendor or service provider that Client has 

selected to integrate any of its Services with. 

 

22. If implementation services, such as consulting or training, are purchased by Client and are not used solely due to the 

inaction or unresponsiveness of Client during the implementation period, then these services shall expire within 30 days after 

implementation closeout. The Client may choose to re-schedule any unused implementation services during this 30 day period 

as mutually agreed upon by the Parties. Any implementation services that have not been used or rescheduled shall be marked 

complete and closed upon the expiration of the 30 day period. 

 

Data Security 

 

23. CivicPlus shall, at all times, comply with the terms and conditions of its Privacy Policy. CivicPlus will maintain 

commercially reasonable administrative, physical, and technical safeguards designed to protect the security and confidentiality 

of Client data. Except (a) in order to provide the Services; (b) to prevent or address service or technical problems in connection 

with support matters; (c) as expressly permitted in writing by Client; or (d) in compliance with our Privacy Policy, CivicPlus will 

not modify Client data or disclose Client data, unless specifically directed by Client or compelled by law. Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, CivicPlus reserves the right to delete known malicious accounts without Client authorization. 

 

24. Client acknowledges and agrees that CivicPlus utilizes third-party service providers to host and provide the Services and 

store Client data and the protection of such data will be in accordance with such third party’s safeguards for the protection and 

the security and confidentiality of Client’s data. 

 

25. CivicPlus may offer Client the ability to use third-party applications in combination with the Services. Any such third-party 

application will be subject to acceptance by Client. In connection with any such third-party application agreed to by Client, Client 

acknowledges and agrees that CivicPlus may allow the third-party providers access to Client data as required for the interoperation 

of such third-party application with the Services. The use of a third-party application with the Services may also require Client 

to agree to a separate agreement or terms and conditions with the provider of the third-party application, which will govern 

Client's use of such third-party application. 

 

26. In the event of a security breach at the sole fault of the negligence, malicious actions, omissions, or misconduct of 

CivicPlus, CivicPlus, as the data custodian, will comply will all remediation efforts as required by applicable federal and state 

law. 

 

CivicPlus Support 

 
27. CivicPlus will use commercially reasonable efforts to perform the Services in a manner consistent with applicable industry 

standards, including maintaining Services availability 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Client will have 24/7 access to the online 

112

Item 17.

https://www.civicplus.com/legal-stuff
https://www.civicplus.com/privacy-policy
https://www.civicplus.com/privacy-policy


CivicPlus Help Center (civicplus.help) to review use articles, software best practices, receive maintenance release notes, as well 

as submit and monitor omni-channel support tickets and access solution specific support contact methods 

(https://www.civicplus.help/hc/en-us/requests/new). 
 

28. CivicPlus provides live support engineers based in the domestic United States to respond to basic questions concerning use 

and configuration, to diagnose software code-related errors, and proactively identify potential systems issues. CivicPlus support 

engineersserve a preliminary function in the agile development process and escalate defects to software developers or architects 

for remediation. For security purposes, CivicPlus support engineers are not permitted to modify user accounts, and permissions 

nor distribute access outside of accounts established by means of a support interaction for testing. Client delegated Users may 

receivetutorials and guidance on account modifications but will perform the action themselves. 

 
29. CivicPlus support hours span between the hours of 7 am to 7 pm CST, but may vary by product. Client will have 24/7 

access to the online CivicPlus Help Center (civicplus.help) to obtain each product’s support hours, review use articles, software 

best practices, receive maintenance release notes, as well as submit and monitor omni-channel support tickets and access solution 

specific support contact methods (https://www.civicplus.help/hc/en-us/requests/new).After-hours support is available by toll- 

free phone call only. Non-emergency support requested outside of support hours will be subject to additional fees, such fees 

will be quoted to Client at the time of the request and will be subject to Client acceptance and invoiced the next business day 

following the non-emergencysupport. CivicPlus shall have the sole discretion to determine whether support requests qualify as 

an emergency, exceed reasonable use or are outside the scope of services outlined in any SOW. 

 

30. If a reported problem cannot be solved during the first support interaction, Client will be provided a ticket number that will 

be used as communication method throughout ticket escalation until a solution is provided. Support service does not include 

support for errors caused by third party products or applications for which CivicPlus is not responsible. 

 

Marketing 

 

31. Client hereby authorizes CivicPlus to use Client's name and logo on CivicPlus's website and in sales and marketing 

presentations. Such authorization may be withdrawn by Client at any time for any reason or no reason at all upon written notice 

to CivicPlus. Client may publicly refer to itself as a customer of the CivicPlus Services, including on Client's website and in sales 

presentations. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Each Party hereby grants the other a limited, worldwide, license to use the other’s 

logo in conformance with such Party’s trademark usage guidelines and solely for the purpose set forth in this §28. In no event 

will either party issue a press release publicly announcing this relationship without the approval of the other party, such approval 

not to be unreasonably withheld. 

 

Limitation of Liability 

 
32. CivicPlus’ liability arising out of or related to this Agreement, or any associated SOW, will not exceed the Annual Recurring 

Services amounts paid by Client in the year prior to such claim of liability. 

 
33. In no event will CivicPlus be liable to Client for any consequential, indirect, special, incidental, or punitive damages arising 

out of or related to this Agreement. 

34. The liabilities limited by Section 32 and 33 apply: (a) to liability for negligence; (b) regardless of the form of action, whether 

in contract, tort, strict product liability, or otherwise; (c) even if Client is advised in advance of the possibility of the damages in 

question and even if such damages were foreseeable; and (d) even if Client’s remedies fail of their essential purposes. If applicable 

law limits the application of the provisions of this Limitation of Liability section, CivicPlus’ liability will be limited to the 

maximum extent permissible. 

 
Warranties and Disclaimer 

 

35. Each person signing the SOW, or otherwise agreeing to the terms of this Agreement, represents and warrants that he or she 

is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute and bind the respective Party to the terms and conditions of the SOW and 

this Agreement. Each Party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of the SOW and the performance 

113

Item 17.

https://www.civicplus.help/hc/en-us/requests/new
http://www.civicplus.help/hc/en-us/requests/new).After-hours
http://www.civicplus.help/hc/en-us/requests/new).After-hours


of such Party’s obligations thereunder have been duly authorized and that this Agreement is a valid and legal agreement binding 

on such Party and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 

36. CivicPlus warrants that the Services will perform substantially in accordance with documentation and marketing proposals, 

and free of any material defect. CivicPlus warrants to the Client that, upon notice given to CivicPlus of any defect in design or 

fault or improper workmanship, CivicPlus will remedy any such defect. CivicPlus makes no warranty regarding, and will have 

no responsibility for, any claim arising out of: (i) a modification of the Services made by anyone other than CivicPlus, even in a 

situation where CivicPlus approves of such modification in writing; or (ii) use of the Services in combination with a third party 

service, web hosting service, or server not authorized by CivicPlus. 

 

37. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES IN THIS AGREEMENT, CIVICPLUS HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL 

WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED 

WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ARISING FROM A PRIOR 

COURSE OF DEALING. 

38. EACH PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT THAT PROVIDES FOR A LIMITATION OF LIABILITY, DISCLAIMER 

OF WARRANTIES, OR EXCLUSION OF DAMAGES IS TO ALLOCATE THE RISKS OF THIS AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE PARTIES. THIS ALLOCATION IS REFLECTED IN THE PRICING OFFERED BY CIVICPLUS TO CLIENT AND IS 

AN ESSENTIAL ELEMENT OF THE BASIS OF THE BARGAIN BETWEEN THE PARTIES. EACH OF THESE 

PROVISIONS IS SEVERABLE AND INDEPENDENT OF ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

 

Force Majeure 

 
39. No party shall have any liability to the other hereunder by reason of any delay or failure to perform any obligation or 

covenant if the delay or failure to perform is occasioned by force majeure, meaning any act of God, storm, pandemic, fire, 

casualty, unanticipated work stoppage, strike, lockout, labor dispute, civic disturbance, riot, war, national emergency, act of public 

enemy, or other cause of similar or dissimilar nature beyond its control. 

 

Taxes 

 
40. The amounts owed for the Services exclude, and Client will be responsible for, all sales, use, excise, withholding and any 

other similar taxes, duties and charges of any kind imposed by any federal, state or local governmental entity in connection with 

the Services (excluding taxes based solely on CivicPlus’s income). If the Client is tax-exempt, the Client must provide CivicPlus 

proof of their tax-exempt status, within fifteen (15) days of contract signing, and the fees owed by Client under this Agreement 

will not be taxed. If such exemption certificate is challenged or held invalid by a taxing authority then Client agrees to pay for all 

resulting fines, penalties and expenses. 

 

Other Documents 

 
41. This Agreement, including all exhibits, amendments, and addenda hereto and all SOWs, constitutes the entire agreement 

between the Parties and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, proposals or representations, written or oral, 

concerning its subject matter. No modification, amendment, or waiver of any provision of this Agreement or any SOW will be 

effective unless in writing and signed by each Party. However, to the extent of any conflict or inconsistency between the provision 

in the body of this Agreement and any exhibit, amendment, or addenda hereto or any SOW, the terms of such exhibit, amendment, 

addenda or SOW will prevail. Notwithstanding any language to the contrary therein, no terms or conditions stated in a Client 

purchase order or other order documentation (excluding SOWs) will be incorporated into or form any part of this Agreement, all 

such terms or conditions will be null and void, unless such term is to refer and agree to this Agreement . 

 
Interlocal Purchasing Consent/ Cooperative Purchasing 

 
42. With the prior approval of CivicPlus, which may be withheld for any or no reason within CivicPlus’s sole discretion, this 

Agreement and any SOW may be extended to any public entity in Client’s home-state to purchase at the SOW prices and 

specifications in accordance with the terms stated herein. 

114

Item 17.



43. To the extent permitted by law, the terms of this Agreement and set forth in one or more SOW(s) may be extended for use 

by other local government entities upon execution of a separate agreement, SOW, or other duly signed writing by and between 

CivicPlus and such entity, setting forth all of the terms and conditions for such use, including applicable fees and billing terms. 

 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

 
44. The invalidity, in whole or in part, of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other 

provision of this Agreement. 

45. The Parties negotiated this Agreement with the opportunity to receive the aid of counsel and, accordingly, intend this 

Agreement to be construed fairly, according to its terms, in plain English, without constructive presumptions against the drafting 

Party. The headings of Sections of this Agreement are for convenience and are not to be used in interpreting this Agreement. As 

used in this Agreement, the word “including” means “including but not limited to.” 

46. The Parties will use reasonable efforts to resolve any dispute between them in good faith prior to initiating legal action. 

 

47. This Agreement and any SOW, to the extent signed and delivered by means of a facsimile machine or electronic mail, shall 

be treated in all manner and respects as an original agreement or instrument and shall be considered to have the same binding 

legal effect as if it were the original signed version thereof delivered in person. The Parties agree that an electronic signature is 

the legal equivalent of its manual signature on this Agreement and any SOW. The Parties agree that no certification authority or 

other third party verification is necessary to validate its electronic signature and that the lack of such certification of third party 

verification will not in any way affect the enforceability of the Parties’ electronic signature or any resulting agreement between 

CivicPlus and Client. 

 

48. Due to the rapidly changing nature of software as a service and digital communications, CivicPlus may unilaterally update 

this Agreement from time to time. In the event CivicPlus believes such change is a material alteration of the terms herein, 

CivicPlus will provide Client with written notice describing such change via email or through its website. Client’s continued use 

of the Services following such updates constitutes Client’s acceptance of the same. In the event Client rejects the update to  the 

terms herein, Client must notify CivicPlus of its objection within ten (10) days receipt of notice of such update. 

115

Item 17.



 
 

Addendum to the Agreements by and between CivicPlus, LLC and Cedar Falls, IA 
 

Master Service Agreement and Statement of Work 

Addendum 
THIS Master Services Agreement and Statement of Work Addendum (“Addendum”) hereby sets forth the (i) additional terms and 

conditions applicable to the Master Services Agreement, and/or Statement of Work (“Agreements”) and/or (ii) amendments to specific 
provisions of the terms and conditions which exist in the Agreements (collectively, the “Special Terms”), as described below, as agreed 
upon by CivicPlus and Cedar Falls, IA. The Special Terms shall be deemed to amend, modify, supplement, replace and/or supersede (as 
applicable) any inconsistent provisions of the Agreements, to the extent of the inconsistency. 

 

ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENTS NOT EXPRESSLEY MODIFIED HEREIN SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE 
AND EFFECT. 
Capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreements (to which this Addendum is 
attached and incorporated). 

 
1. ADDITIONAL TERMS 

 

2. AMENDMENTS 
 

The terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby amended as follows: 

 
Document and Section Amended Language 
MSA § 31 This section intentionally omitted. 
MSA § 48 CivicPlus’ liability arising out of or related to this Agreement, or any associated SOW, will not exceed 

three times the Annual Recurring Services amounts paid by Client in the year prior to such 
claim of liability. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Acceptance 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Addendum to be executed by their duly authorized representatives 

as of the dates below. 

Client CivicPlus 

 
By: 

 
By: 

 
Name: Robert M. Green 

 
Name: 

 
Title: Mayor 

 
Title: 

 
Date: 

 
Date: 

 
 
 
 

 
1 

Addendum to Master Services Agreement 
116

Item 17.



V. PD 06.01.2015-0048 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

 
 

CivicPlus 
302 South 4th St. Suite 500 

Manhattan, KS 66502 

US 

 
Quote #: Q-28723-1 

Date: 8/29/2022 9:44 AM 

Expires On: 12/31/2022 

 

Client: 

Cedar Falls IA - Code and Supp 

Bill To: 

Cedar Falls IA - Code and Supp 

 
SALESPERSON Phone EMAIL DELIVERY METHOD PAYMENT METHOD 

Lafaye Kiely x lkiely@civicplus.com  Net 30 

 

 
QTY DESCRIPTION PRODUCT 

TYPE 

TOTAL 

1.00 Full-Service Supplementation Subscription Renewable USD 6,208.00 

1.00 Year 1 Annual Fee Discount Renewable USD -1,241.60 

1.00 Print Supplementation will begin with the ordinances received from the 

municipality on a quarterly basis. 

Renewable USD 0.00 

1.00 Printed Copies and Freight Included- 40 copies Renewable USD 0.00 

Annual Recurring Supplement Services 6,208.00 

 
 

 
1. This Statement of Work ("SOW") is between the Cedar Falls Iowa (“Client”) and Municode, LLC, a wholly owned 

subsidiary of CivicPlus, LLC (collectively, the “Service Provider”), and shall be subject to the terms and conditions of 

the CivicPlus Master Services Agreement located at https://www.civicplus.com/master-services-agreement (“MSA”). By 

signing this SOW, Client expressly agrees to the terms and conditions of the MSA throughout the Term of this SOW. 

 
2. At any time during the Term of this Agreement, Municode may assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement 

to CivicPlus, upon giving written notice to the Client. In the event of such assignment by Municode, CivicPlus shall be the 

sole performing party under this Agreement to the same extent as Municode prior to making such assignment. 

 

 
3. This SOW shall remain in effect for an initial term (“Initial Term”) starting at signing and running through the following 

Renewal Date (as defined below). In the event that neither party gives 60 days’ notice to terminate prior to the end of the 

Initial Term, or any subsequent Renewal Term, this SOW will automatically renew for additional 1-year renewal terms 

(“Renewal Term”). The Initial Term and all Renewal Terms are collectively referred to as the “Term”. 

 

 
4. If Client elects, by selecting the “Start at Signing” option below, the Initial Term’s Annual Recurring Supplement 

Services will be invoiced upon the signing of this SOW and may be prorated to align with Client’s Renewal Date. If Client 

elects, by selecting the “Start at Renewal Date” option below, the Initial Term’s Annual Recurring Supplement Services 

will be invoiced upon the Renewal Date and Client shall continue to be billed at their current per page rate and use terms 

117

Item 17.

mailto:lkiely@civicplus.com
https://www.civicplus.com/master-services-agreement


V. PD 06.01.2015-0048 

Page 2 of 6 
 

set for the in the original supplements agreement between Client and Municode. The full Annual Recurring Supplement 

Services shall be invoiced each Renewal Date and shall be subject to a 5% annual increase each Renewal Term, starting 

on the second anniversary of the Renewal Date. Client will pay all invoices within 30 days of the date of such invoice. 

Additional services added throughout the Term will be pro-rated then added to the Annual Recurring Services fee. 

 
5. If Client signs this SOW in 2022, Client will receive a 20% discount on the first twelve months of service. 

 

 
6. Annual Recurring Supplement Services does NOT include: 

• Additional copies, reprints, binders and tab orders; 

• Documents that contain tables, graphics, unique formatting requirements, or any other form-based code requirements; 

• Legal work, creation of fee schedules, gender neutral review/implementation, external linking; 

• Codifying complete replacement of complex subject matter such as, but not limited to, Zoning (or equivalent). This 

work is subject to a one-time editorial conversion fee and an increase in the annual supplement rate and online 

hosting fee(s). Quote provided upon receipt of material; 

• Codifying a newly adopted full Chapter/Title/Appendix. This may be subject to a one-time additional editorial fee and 

an increase in the annual supplement rate and online hosting fee(s). Material to be reviewed upon receipt; 

• Codifying a newly adopted term change legislation. This may be subject to a one-time additional editorial fee. Material 

to be reviewed upon receipt; 

• The addition of Manuals, Policies, Procedures, Comprehensive Plans, Land Use, Unified Codes, Zoning (or 

equivalent). Quotation upon request; and 

• Online Code hosting and online features. 
 

 
7. Client acknowledges that Service Provider may continually develop, alter, deliver, and provide to the Client ongoing 

innovation to the services, in the form of new features, functionality, and efficiencies. Accordingly, Service Provider 

reserves the right to modify the services from time to time. Any modifications or improvements to the services listed on 

the SOW will be provided to the Client at no additional charge. In the event that Service Provider creates new products 

or enhancements to the Services (“New Services”), and Client desires these New Services, then Client will have to pay 

Service Provider the appropriate fee for the access to and use of the New Services. 

 

 
8. Client agrees to provide all necessary and correct documentation, materials and communication in a timely manner 

as agreed upon by the Parties following execution of this SOW and acknowledges Service Provider shall not begin work 

under this SOW until all necessary documentation, materials and communication is received. 

 

 
9. Client acknowledges Service Provider reserves the right to ship and close out any project if no feedback to the proofs 

is received within 45 days. 

 

 
10. Client acknowledges Service Provider does not permanently retain prior versions of the Client’s legal code or any 

other work product. 

 

 
11. Additional services, including but not limited to additional labor required because of delays, errors or omissions 

on the part of Client, may be purchased upon mutual written agreement between the Parties. 

 

 
12. Client acknowledges that Service Provider may provide legal analysis through codification, recodification or legal 

review services.  Unless indicated otherwise, information sent via Internet email or through our websites cannot be 

guaranteed to be confidential.  Client further acknowledges that any legal analysis provided by Service Provider is 

118

Item 17.



V. PD 06.01.2015-0048 

Page 3 of 6 
 

provided to Client’s legal counsel for their use and direction. However, Client agrees the services provided for herein do 

not review legal codes for legal sufficiency, draw legal conclusions, provide legal advice, opinions or recommendations 

about Client’s legal rights, remedies, defenses, options, selection of forms, or strategies, or apply the law to the facts of 

any particular situation or establish an attorney-client relationship. Service Provider is not a law firm and may not perform 

services performed by an attorney, and the services contemplated herein do not constitute a substitute for the advice or 

services of an attorney. 

 

 
13. The Parties agree that Section 15 of the MSA shall not apply to public interpretation of legal code or work 

product. Service Provider shall not be responsible for the legal sufficiency or copyright infringement of any material 

initially or subsequently published. 

 

 
14. In the event Client wishes to increase its Supplement Updates frequency, Client agrees to pay an annual increase 

in an amount to be agreed upon between the parties, such amount to be prorated from the time of purchase to align with 

Client’s Renewal Date. Client shall provide CivicPlus with written notice, email is sufficient, of its intent to acquire such 

services. Rush Supplement requests will be assessed an additional one-time fee. 

 

 
15. The Annual Recurring Supplement Services fee quoted in this SOW is exclusive of Client’s existing annual fees, 

which may include, without limitation, Online Hosting Annual Fees, OrdBank, OrdLink, MuniDocs, SLR Linking, or 

other annual fee (“Existing Annual Fees”).  Client understands and agrees the Existing Annual Fees will be invoiced by 

CivicPlus in their current renewal month previously established with Municode unless specifically added to this SOW in a 

line item above. 

119

Item 17.



V. PD 06.01.2015-0048 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

CLIENT TO FILL OUT THE FOLLOWING SECTION. PLEASE DO NOT LEAVE BLANK: 

 
Client's selected billing renewal month (the “Renewal Date”) shall be: 

  . (As set forth in Section 4 of this SOW) 

 
Client must select ONE of the following options. If this section is left blank or both options are selected, the Annual 

Recurring Supplement Services will Start at Signing. 

 

 
 
 

 

Start at Renewal Date - As set forth in Section 4 of this SOW, by selecting this option, Client agrees to continue 

paying the “per page rate” model previously billed with Municode until the first Renewal Date, as notated by Client 

above. Upon the first Renewal Date, Client will be invoiced the total Annual Recurring Supplement Services. 

Start at Signing – As set forth in Section 4 of this SOW, by selecting this option, Client agrees to start the 

Annual Recurring Supplement Services upon signing this SOW, such fee to be prorated to align with Clients’ 

selected Renewal Date. For the sake of clarity, upon signing Client will only be billed the “per page rate” 

model for items not included in the Annual Recurring Supplement rate as set forth in Section 6 of this SOW. 

120

Item 17.



V. PD 06.01.2015-0048 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Acceptance 

 
By signing below, the parties are agreeing to be bound by the covenants and obligations specified in this SOW and the 

MSA terms and conditions found at: https://www.civicplus.com/master-services-agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this SOW to be executed by their duly authorized representatives as of 

the dates below. 

 
 

 
Client CivicPlus 

 

By:  By: 
 

  

Name: Name: 
Robert M. Green 
Ror klj   

Title: Title: 
  Mayor 

  

Date: Date: 
 

  

121

Item 17.

https://www.civicplus.com/master-services-agreement


V. PD 06.01.2015-0048 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Contact Information 

 
*all documents must be returned: Master Service Agreement, Statement of Work, and Contact Information Sheet. 

 
 

Organization City of Cedar Falls URL 

Street Address 220 Clay Street  

Address 2   

City:  Cedar Falls State:  Iowa Postal Code:  50613 

CivicPlus provides telephone support for all trained clients from 7am –7pm Central Time, Monday-Friday (excluding holidays). 

Emergency Support is provided on a 24/7/365 basis for representatives named by the Client. Client is responsible for 

ensuring CivicPlus has current updates. 

 

Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone 319-273-8600  

Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone  

Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone  

Billing Contact:  Jacque Danielsen, 
Jacque.danielsen@cedarfalls.com 

E-Mail 

Phone:  319-273-8600 Ext. Fax: 319-268-5126 

Billing Address:  220 Clay Street  

Address 2  

City:  Cedar Falls State:  IA Postal Code: 

50613 

Tax ID # Sales Tax Exempt # 

Billing Terms Account Rep 

Info Required on Invoice (PO or Job #)  

 
Are you utilizing any external funding for your project (ex. FEMA, CARES): 

 
Please list all external sources:    

 
Contract Contact 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Email 

 
Y   

 
   or   N -X 

 
 

Phone Ext. Fax    

Project Contact Email    

Phone Ext. Fax    
 

 

122

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5528 
Fax: 319-273-8656 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Recreation & Community Programs Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Mike Soppe, Manager 
 
 DATE: December 12, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Tai Chi Contract   
   
   
 
Attached you will find the Professional Goods and Services Agreement with Elise Bovy 
and the Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging.  They are planning on teaching an 
introductory Tai Chi course at the Rec Center. They have previously been instructing 
this class at the Community Center.  
 
 
This class come highly recommended. The Recreation & Community Programs 
Manager recommends approving this contract.  
 
   
 
   

 

123

Item 18.



1 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

(PARTIES/SUBJECT OF CONTRACT) 

 

This Agreement is by and between __Elise Bovy with Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging_ (“Contractor”) and the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Contractor or the City below. 

1.0.       Contractor’s Services 

1.1.       Contractor’s services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by 

Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit “A” attached.  (“Services” or “Scope of Services”) 

1.2.       Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until 

authorized in writing by the City.  No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the 

Contractor and the City in writing.  Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively 

presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such 

work, has been agreed to in advance.  If Exhibit “A” includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall 

not be performed until written authorization is given by the City.  

1.3.       Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby 

warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services 

required by this Agreement.  Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the 

Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement, 

unless otherwise approved in writing by the City.  In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced, 

Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as 

approved by the City. 

1.4.       Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in 

Exhibit “A”.  The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor’s performance 

under this Agreement.         

1.5.       Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any 

third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services to 

the City.  Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the 

provision of Services, at Contractor’s cost. 

1.6.       The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has 

full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor. 

2.0.       Compensation 

2.1.       All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars.  All prices must remain firm for the duration of this 

Agreement. 

2.2.       After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in 

accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit “B”.  The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall 

be the amount set forth in Exhibit “B”, unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which 

case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly.   

2.3.       Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days 

of receipt of a proper invoice.  The invoice shall include, at a minimum. The name and address of the Contractor, the 

invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or 

124

Item 18.



2 
 

goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid.  The invoice shall be mailed 

or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below. 

2.4.       Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit “B”. 

2.5.       If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must 

provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made. 

2.6.       If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest 

on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid.  In addition, Contractor may, after giving seven (7) days 

written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full. 

2.7.       Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for 

faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other claims against any Services, including products. 

3.0.       Taxes. 

3.1.       The City is exempt from all federal, State of Iowa, and other states’ taxes on the purchase of products and 

services used by the City within the State of Iowa.  The City shall provide tax exemption certification as required.   

3.2.       Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.  

4.0.       Ownership and Use of Documents 

4.1.       All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery, or innovation 

(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the 

Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual 

property rights.  To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, title 

and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and trade secret rights.  Upon the 

City’s request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership 

rights.   

4.2.       Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and 

other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services. 

4.3.       Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also 

known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor.  Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or 

of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor.  Any 

conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor’s sole risk. 

4.4.       During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor 

and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in 

providing Services under this Agreement.  The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such 

information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5) 

years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this 

Agreement, whichever date is latest.  No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or 

inspection by the City or designee.  

5.0.       Term and Termination. 

5.1.       The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date and end by Summer of 2023___ unless 

earlier terminated under the terms of this Agreement. 

5.2        The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the 

Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days 

before the effective date of termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials 

125

Item 18.



3 
 

prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City’s property.  If the Agreement 

is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized, 

approved and provided up to the effective date of termination.  The City will not be subject to any termination fees 

from the Contractor. 

5.3.       Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the 

other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 

initiating the termination. 

6.0.       Warranties. 

6.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the 

standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application.   

6.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each 

component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall 

meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services.  If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by 

the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15 

days after notification by the City, at Contractor’s expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete 

satisfaction of the City.  

6.3.       Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all 

Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary 

as a result of Contractor’s acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor’s Services. 

6.4.       Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor’s 

acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or 

remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions. 

6.5.       Contractor’s obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the 

availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor.  None of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City’s right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of 

Contractor’s fault or breach. 

7.0.       Warranties – Intellectual Property.   

7.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon 

any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or 

entity. 

7.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City’s use of the same, and the exercise by the 

City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or 

privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity. 

7.3.       Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the 

Services contemplated by this Agreement. 

8.0.       Disputes. 

8.1.       Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such 

dispute.  Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes. 

8.2.       Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out 

all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make 

payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement.  Should the Contractor fail to 

126

Item 18.



4 
 

continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs 

incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor. 

8.3.       Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in 

mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party.  The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties 

except that each party shall be responsible for that party’s own expenses and attorney fees associated with 

mediation.  The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute. 

9.0.       Indemnification and Hold Harmless. 

9.1.       To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor (for purposes of this Section 9.0, includes employees, 

subcontractors, agents and others working on behalf of Contractor under this Agreement) agrees to defend (for all 

non-professional claims), indemnify, and hold harmless the City (for purposes of this Section 9.0 includes elected and 

appointed officials, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City) against any and all claims, demands, suits 

or loss, including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages, which may be asserted, 

claimed or recovered against or from the City, including, but not limited to, damages arising by reason of personal 

injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damage, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 

associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City under this Agreement, to the extent 

caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the Contractor.  

9.2.       Contractor’s duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor’s breach 

or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement.  Such duty also includes damage, loss or injury to the City or City property. 

9.3.       Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for loss, expense, damages or injuries which may result to 

the Contractor by reason of or in connection with the work and/or services provided by Contractor under this 

Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the 

Contractor. 

9.4.       It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any 

member of the public third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to maintain a 

suit for personal injuries or property damage.        

10.0.       Insurance. 

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit “C” 

unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section. 

Insurance requirement waived:  _______________________________________________ (Signature and title of 

authorized City employee or officer) 

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance. 

11.0.       Compliance with Laws and Regulations. 

11.1.       Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, 

state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations and shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that its 

employees, agents, subcontractors and others working on behalf of the Contractor under this Agreement do the 

same. 

11.2.       Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under 

applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet (“SDS”) with the initial shipment of such 

chemicals.  Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its 

delivery may be refused.  It is also the Contractor’s responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SDS 

as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City. 

127

Item 18.



5 
 

12.0.       Independent Contractor. 

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents, 

employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be 

deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever. 

13.0.       Non-Collusion. 

13.1.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or 

procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in 

connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement. 

13.2.       Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied, 

contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in 

such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.  

13.3.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered 

into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free 

competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement. 

14.0.       Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. 

14.1.       Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex, 

color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, 

genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification protected by federal, state, or local law, except where 

age or sex is an essential bona fide occupational requirement, or where disability is a bona fide occupational 

disqualification.   

14.2.       Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this 

nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with 

the same. 

15.0.       No Conflict of Interest, 

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this 

Agreement that is a conflict of interest under Iowa law.  No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall 

participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.  

Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of 

Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any 

excess costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums yet 

due to Contractor. 

16.0.       Force Majeure. 

16.1.       Force majeure shall be any of the following events:  acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any 

order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as 

such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or 

labor disputes; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or referred to in this 

Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected.  A delay in or failure of performance by 

either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any claim for damages, if 

and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

16.2.       The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to 

exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other 

party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy 

such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties. 

128

Item 18.



6 
 

16.3.       If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this 

Agreement may be terminated by either party. 

17.0.       Assignment. 

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the 

City.  The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor’s assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if 

approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be 

bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

18.0.       Governing Law.   

18.1.       This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 

18.2.       Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa.        

19.0.       Discrepancy.   

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor’s bid or 

quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor’s bid or quote is incorporated into this 

Agreement. 

20.0       Public Record. 

20.1.      This Agreement as well as Contractor’s bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote 

shall become public documents subject to Iowa Code Chapter 22, the Iowa Open Records Law.  By submitting the 

bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this 

and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on 

behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted. 

20.2.       Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and 

agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or 

information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process. 

20.3.       Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any 

submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information.  Should the submitting party wish to 

designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked.  The City shall make no determination as 

to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under Iowa Code Chapter 22.  Rather, the City shall 

endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for 

asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order.  As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify 

the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City’s elected and appointed officers, the City’s 

employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such 

disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or 

occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence.  

21.0.       Debarment. 

21.1.       Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently 

debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 

Agreement by any federal agency. 

21.2.       Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of Iowa. 

 

129

Item 18.



7 
 

22.0        Confidentiality of Shared Information. 

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed 

confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing.  If 

designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary 

for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating 

party, or as required by law, or by an order of a court or administrative agency.  In the event of a dispute over the 

confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information 

until the issue of confidentiality is resolved.  The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive 

the termination of this Agreement. 

23.0.       Entire Agreement. 

23.1.       This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the 

entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no 

representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall 

be of any force or effect. 

23.2.       No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 

and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced. 

24.0.       Additional Terms. 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

25.0.       Notices. 

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or 

provided to: 

City:                                                                                               Contractor: 

Name: ________________________                                           Name: Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging with  

Elise Bovy 

Title: ___________________________                                       Title: Aging Specialist-Nutrition 

Address: ________________________                                       Address: 3840 W 9th St. Waterloo, IA 50702 

             _________________________                                                       ___________________________ 

Telephone: ______________________                                       Telephone: 319-231-6798 

Email: __________________________                                        Email: ebovy@nei3a.org 

 

 

 

130

Item 18.



8 
 

 

In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed 

below. 

 

CONTRACTOR 

(Name of Contractor)______Elise Bovy and Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging_ 

By: ___Elise Bovy________ 

Its: ___Aging Specialist-Nutrition__________________               Date: 11/1/2022 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

By: __________________________________ 

        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

Attest: ________________________________                                      Date: _____________________ 

             Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

                                 

    

131

Item 18.



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

To instruct beginner Tai Chi for a class of 10-20 participants at the Rec Center. This class is an 

eight-week course that meets twice a week for an hour and a half during the day.  The class will be 

offered a few times a year, as scheduled by the Rec staff. Courses are anticipated primarily in the Fall, 

Winter and Spring.  Classes will be held in Multi-Purpose at the Rec. 

 

 

  

132

Item 18.



Exhibit B 

Payment 

No fee will be charged to Rec members. This is a class that would be free to members of the Rec.   

Non members would pay a $60 registration fee.  The City would retain all this cost to cover the 

registration and use of the facility. Class participants sign up for the class by registering online or calling 

the Rec. The City uses Civic Rec to track enrollment and will generate a report of participants enrolled I 

the class. The City will provide the Contractor a room, advertises on behalf of the class, and handle 

registering participants.   

133

Item 18.



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

9/29/2022

(319) 352-2880 (319) 365-6919

23850

Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging, Inc
PO Box 107
Decorah, IA 52101

11347

A 1,000,000

X PHPK2222519 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 100,000
5,000

1,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000

PROFESSIONAL LI 3,000,000
1,000,000A

PHPK2222519 1/1/2022 1/1/2023

5,000,000A
PHUB751875 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 5,000,000

10,000
B

94814.105 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 500,000
500,000
500,000

City of Cedar Falls

NORTIOW-08 LFRERICHS

The Accel Group LLC
301 Oak Ridge Circle
Waverly, IA 50677 certs@acceladvantage.com

Philadelphia Ins. Companies
SFM Mutual Insurance Co.

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

134

Item 18.



135

Item 18.



136

Item 18.



137

Item 18.



138

Item 18.



139

Item 18.



140

Item 18.



141

Item 18.



142

Item 18.



143

Item 18.



144

Item 18.



145

Item 18.



146

Item 18.



147

Item 18.



148

Item 18.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone:  319-273-8600 
Fax:  319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: December 12, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Assignment & Assumption Agreement: Orion Cedar Falls IA, LLC. 
 

 
On July 25, 2011, the City and Ryan Companies US, Inc. entered into an Agreement for 
Private Development pertaining to a new professional office development at 1100 
Technology Parkway. The agreement allowed for the transfer of a 7.4-acre city-owned 
lot to Ryan Companies US, Inc. in exchange for constructing a new 45,000 square foot 
office building with a taxable building valuation of $5,625,000. The Agreement included 
standard terms and conditions, which include prohibiting the sale of property and 
assignment of the Agreement without the written approval of the City of Cedar Falls.  
This language is included to allow the City to review these proposed ownership 
transfers and insure compliance with the terms of the Agreement. 
 

Since the time of the original agreement, the property has changed hands several 
times, with the current owner being Orion Cedar Falls IA, LLC. The owner recently listed 
the property for sale, as the building currently has no tenant. Reel Deal Holdings, LLC, 
has agreed to purchase the property from Orion Cedar Falls IA, LLC. For the past few 
weeks, staff has been working with legal counsel representing the seller and buyer and 
City Attorney Kevin Rogers to prepare the applicable Assignment and Assumption 
Agreement necessary to allow this transaction to proceed. 
 

The attached Assignment and Assumption Agreement has been reviewed and 
approved by all parties.  The obligations pertaining to building and development 
requirements have been satisfied and the new ownership group (Reel Deal Holdings, 
LLC) will assume any and all ongoing obligations applicable in the Agreement for 
Private Development until the termination date.  These primary ongoing obligations 
include minimum assessed valuations as applicable, payment of property taxes, and 
property maintenance. 
 

It is recommended that City Council approve and adopt the following: 
 

1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement by and among the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Orion Cedar 
Falls IA, LLC; and Reel Deal Holdings, LLC. 

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this project, please let me know. 
 

xc:  Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 

149

Item 19.



150

Item 19.



151

Item 19.



152

Item 19.



153

Item 19.



154

Item 19.



155

Item 19.



156

Item 19.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT FOR 

PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT AND CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT 

PROPERTY BY ORION CEDAR FALLS IA, LLC, TO REEL DEAL 

HOLDINGS, LLC, PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT FOR 

PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA, AND RYAN COMPANIES US, INC. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and Developer’s predecessor-in-interest, RYAN COMPANIES US, 

INC. (“Ryan”), entered into that certain Agreement for Private Development (hereinafter the 

“Agreement for Private Development”), on the 25th day of July, 2011, pursuant to which 

Agreement the City conveyed the following real estate to Ryan: 

 

Lot 10, Lot 11, Lot 12, except the East one hundred twenty (120.00) feet in even width 

thereof, and Lot 16 except the East one hundred twenty (120.00) feet in even width 

thereof, all in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

(the “Development Property”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Ryan agreed to certain terms and conditions in exchange for conveyance of 

the Development Property by the City to Ryan, including execution of a Minimum Assessment 

Agreement (hereinafter the “Minimum Assessment Agreement”) relating to the assessed value of 

the Development Property for the period ending December 31, 2024; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer is the successor-in-interest to Ryan; and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement for Private Development requires the approval and consent 

of the City of Cedar Falls to such assignment and transfer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls has been presented with a 

proposed Assignment and Assumption Agreement, pursuant to which Orion Cedar Falls IA, 

LLC. proposes to assign the Agreement for Private Development and transfer the Development 

Property to Reel Deal Holdings, LLC, and Reel Deal Holdings, LLC, agrees to assume the 

obligations of Orion Cedar Falls IA, LLC. under the Agreement for Private Development, and 

agrees to perform all duties and obligations thereunder; and 

157

Item 19.



 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to consent to the assignment of the Agreement for 

Private Development and to approve the transfer of the Development Property from Orion Cedar 

Falls IA, LLC, to Reel Deal Holdings, LLC, on the terms and conditions stated in the proposed 

Assignment and Assumption Agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the assignment of the Agreement for Private Development by Orion Cedar 

Falls IA, LLC to Reel Deal Holdings, LLC, be and the same is hereby in all respects authorized, 

approved and confirmed. 

 

2. That the transfer and conveyance of the Development Property by Orion Cedar 

Falls IA, LLC to Reel Deal Holdings, LLC, be and the same is hereby authorized, approved and 

confirmed. 

 

3. That the form and content of the Assignment and Assumption Agreement, the 

provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same are hereby in all 

respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are 

hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Assignment 

and Assumption Agreement for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content 

now before this meeting, but with such changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein as 

shall be approved by such officers, and that the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, 

empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may 

be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Assignment and Assumption 

Agreement as executed.  The City Clerk is directed to cause a copy of the Assignment and 

Assumption Agreement to be filed with the Black Hawk County Recorder. 

 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this ________ day of _________________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

(SEAL)     Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

158

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division  

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: November 21, 2022 

SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG) Service Agency 
Contract: Family Management Financial Solutions  

  
The City of Cedar Falls is committed to obtaining funds every year through federal 
programs like CDBG, HOME, and Section 8 to help serve the needs of low-and-
moderate income families and individuals living in Cedar Falls. The City may use up to 
15% of our CDBG to fund local service agencies.   
 
As listed in the Annual Action Plan for this year, the City designated $38,970 to Prevent 
Homelessness through Agency and Organizational Support.    
 
Staff has been working with the service agencies that have responded to the Request 
for Proposals to complete the contracts.  Staff anticipates a total of six contracts.  City 
Council approved three contracts at the December 5, 2022 meeting. Attached is the 
contract with the Family Management Financial Solutions for $1,970.00.  The Family 
Management Financial Solutions is a HUD certified housing counseling provider and will 
use the funds for housing counseling.     
   
At their September 21, 2022 meeting, the Housing Commission reviewed the 
recommended allocation of funds to these agencies and recommends approval.   
   
Xc:  Stephanie Houk-Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager     
 

159

Item 20.



160

Item 20.



161

Item 20.



162

Item 20.



163

Item 20.



164

Item 20.



165

Item 20.



166

Item 20.



167

Item 20.



168

Item 20.



169

Item 20.



170

Item 20.



171

Item 20.



172

Item 20.



173

Item 20.



174

Item 20.



175

Item 20.



176

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division  

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: November 21, 2022 

SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG) Service Agency 
Contract: Salvation Army  

  
The City of Cedar Falls is committed to obtaining funds every year through federal 
programs like CDBG, HOME, and Section 8 to help serve the needs of low and 
moderate income families and individuals living in Cedar Falls. The City may use up to 
15% of our CDBG to fund local service agencies.   
 
As listed in the Annual Action Plan for this year, the City designated $38,970 to Prevent 
Homelessness through Agency and Organizational Support.    
 
Staff has been working with the service agencies that have responded to the Request 
for Proposals to complete the contracts.  Staff anticipates a total of six contracts.  City 
Council approved three contracts at the December 5, 2022 meeting.  Attached is the 
contract with the Salvation Army for $5,800.  The Salvation Army proposes to use the 
funds for maintenance of their three homeless shelters.     
   
At their September 21, 2022 meeting, the Housing Commission reviewed the 
recommended allocation of funds to these agencies and recommends approval.   
   
Xc:  Stephanie Houk-Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager     
 

177

Item 21.



178

Item 21.



179

Item 21.



180

Item 21.



181

Item 21.



182

Item 21.



183

Item 21.



184

Item 21.



185

Item 21.



186

Item 21.



187

Item 21.



188

Item 21.



189

Item 21.



190

Item 21.



191

Item 21.



192

Item 21.



193

Item 21.



194

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Thomas Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 
 

 DATE: December 19, 2022 

SUBJECT: Extension of the Timeline to Complete the Hazard Mitigation Grant for 
Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program 

 
In May 2019, the City submitted a notice of intent to the Iowa Department of Homeland 
Security Emergency Management (HSEMD) for a Hazard Mitigation Grant to purchase 15 
properties in the North Cedar Neighborhood. In July 2019, the City Council adopted 
Resolution 21,609 approving and authorizing the application for a Hazard Mitigation Grant 
and the local match of $259,080 (15%) of a total project cost of $1,622,297.  
 
In August 2019, the City was notified the grant application was put on hold because of late 
winter/early spring flooding in portions of Iowa. In March 2021, HSEMD notified the City there 
would be funding available to move the grant application forward in 2021. The staff contacted 
the 15 property owners to determine if there was still interest in participation in the program. 
Nine of the property owners responded with interest. HSEMD notified the City on August 10, 
2021, the grant had been approved with $1,498,040 total funding available with a local match 
of $224,706 (15%) according to HSEMD.  
 
On October 4, 2021, City Council passed Resolution 22,527 to provide and make available 
the matching funds for the grant.  At that meeting Council directed staff to have the property 
appraisals updated because of a two-year period had passed from the previous appraisals. 
In January 2022, Council approved Resolution 22,661, executing a contract with Rally 
Appraisal, LLC to reappraise the properties.  
 
Due to delays in gaining access to the properties to update the appraisals, HSEMD 
suggested requesting an extension for the completion of the project from July 2022 to 
December 2022. The Council approved Resolution 22,775 approving the amendment to 
extend the project completion date to December 31, 2022.  
 
In May 2022, the City sent a purchase offer to the eight property owners who were interested 
in selling their properties. Only four property owners chose to sell their properties. The City 
completed the purchase of the four properties in early September 2022 and completed the 
purchase and demolition of these properties by December 2, 2022. 

195

Item 22.



In late September 2022, the City was granted a second amendment to the agreement 
reducing the City’s matching portion of the grant from $224,706 (0%), a change resulting in 
the Federal Government assuming the City’s cost. 
 
In early November, HSEMD contacted the City to determine whether any of the eleven 
property owners who had not responded to the April 2021, letter sent by the City again 
gauging interest on whether they would like to reconsider selling their properties.  The City 
sent letters on November 9, 2022, to again extend the opportunity to property owners to 
participate and asked owners to respond by December 1, 2022.  There are two property 
owners who expressed interest in selling. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council adopt a 
resolution approving a third amendment to Grant Agreement and Administrative Plan for the 
Voluntary Property Acquisition Program funded under the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program.  
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department.  
 

 
xc:  Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 

  

196

Item 22.



 
 

 

Amendment Number Three 
 

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 
 

Between 
 

Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEMD) 
 

And 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
 
GRANT AGREEMENT NO:  HMGP-DR-4557-0003 
PROJECT TITLE:  Cedar Falls  - Property Acquisitions 
PERFORMANCE PERIOD START DATE: 07/30/2021 
PERFORMANCE PERIOD END DATE:  09/30/2023 
 
This is Amendment Number Three to the above-referenced Subaward Agreement (AGREEMENT) between 
Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEMD) and the City of Cedar Falls 
(SUBRECIPIENT). The original AGREEMENT was executed on 10/11/2021. 
 
Page 4 of 12, III. Period of Performance, paragraph 1, of said AGREEMENT is amended to read: 
 
The approved Period of Performance for this subaward is from 07/30/2021 through 09/30/2023. All work must 
be completed prior to the end of the Period of Performance. HSEMD will not reimburse the SUBRECIPIENT 
for costs that are obligated or incurred outside of the Period of Performance. 
 
All other paragraphs in said AGREEMENT remain unchanged. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, HSEMD, the SUBRECIPIENT, and the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE have 
executed this AGREEMENT by the signatures of authorized persons of the entities and on the date indicated 
below: 

 
Iowa Department of Homeland Security and   City of Cedar Falls: 
Emergency Management: 
 
____________________________________            ____________________________________ 
Dennis Harper                 Rob Green 
Alternate GAR                Mayor 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Date       Date 
  
        
                                                                                    ____________________________________ 
       Authorized Representative (optional) 
 
       ____________________________________  
       Date 

197

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: 12/19/2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Seal Coat Project 
  City Project Number: SC-000-3273 
  Final Acceptance  
 
The 2022 Seal Coat Project is completed and ready for final acceptance. This project 
involved seal coating street sections and 1 parking lot. This project was under contract 
with Blacktop Service Company of Humboldt, Iowa. Attached please find the following 
final documents: 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
  -  Lien Waivers 
   -  Maintenance Bond, Blacktop Service Company 
 
The following lien waivers have been reviewed by the Engineering Division and are on 
file with the City Clerk: 
 

(Insert contractor name) Suppliers: 
Bituminous Materials & Supply 
BMC Aggregates, L.C. 
Flagger Pros USA 

(Insert contractor name) subcontractors: 
A-Line Striping & Sweeping 
Service Signing, L.C. 

 
 
 198

Item 23.



Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Local Sales Tax $100,000.00 

Street Construction Fund $42,036.33 

Total Project Cost $142,036.33 

 
With Council approval, a transfer of funds from the following funding sources to the Street 
Repair Fund will be made, per Iowa Code 545-2.5. 
 

Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Street Construction Fund $42,036.33 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2022 Seal Coat Project were completed in 
reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
            Matthew Tolan, EI   Date 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
 
 

12/12/22 

199

Item 23.



12/6/2022

200

Item 23.



201

Item 23.



202

Item 23.



203

Item 23.



204

Item 23.



205

Item 23.



206

Item 23.



207

Item 23.



208

Item 23.



209

Item 23.



210

Item 23.



211

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: 12/9/2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Bid Opening 
   

On November 15, 2022, at 10:00 a.m., bids were received and opened for Main Street 
Reconstruction. A total of one (1) bid was received. PCI was the bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $21,383,759.75 

Peterson Contractors Inc. $29,997,049.50 

 
A bid tabulation is attached for your reference. Since the low bid is $8,613,289.75 higher 
than the engineering estimate, the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department 
has adjusted the Cedar Falls Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) to free up local options tax 
and street construction funds to be able to fully fund Main Street reconstruction over the 
next three years. 
 
The Iowa Department of Transportation has indicated bid price increases of 21% since 
August 2022. The demand for construction is high with qualified contractors to perform 
the work very low, with that in mind the DOT has recommended approval of the contract. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the bid from Peterson Contractors Inc. in the amount of $29,997,049.50 subject to the 
recommendation of the Iowa Department of Transportation. Upon acceptance of the 
lowest bid, we recommend authorizing the City Engineer to execute the contract, along 
with required bond and insurance, using the Iowa DOT’s electronic file management 
system.  Use of the Iowa DOT’s electronic file management system is required for this 
contract. 
 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer  

212

Item 24.



Bid Date: November 15, 2022

UNIT PRICE
 EXTENDED 

AMOUNT 
UNIT PRICE EXTENDED AMOUNT

1 2101-0850002 CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT 1530 45.00$            68,850.00$                150.00$            229,500.00$               
2 2102-2710070 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY AND BORROW CY  4031 7.00$              28,217.00$                12.50$              50,387.50$                 
3 2102-2710080 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, UNSUITABLE MATERIAL CY  2000 13.00$            26,000.00$                17.50$              35,000.00$                 
4 2102-2710090 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, WASTE CY  25089 6.00$              150,534.00$              17.50$              439,057.50$               
5 2105-8425005 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD CY  1742 28.00$            48,776.00$                30.00$              52,260.00$                 
6 2105-8425015 TOPSOIL, STRIP, SALVAGE AND SPREAD CY  3818 7.00$              26,726.00$                45.00$              171,810.00$               
7 2107-0425020 COMPACTING BACKFILL ADJACENT TO BRIDGES, CULVERTS OR STRUCTURES CY 274 21.00$            5,754.00$                  50.00$              13,700.00$                 
8 2109-8225100 SPECIAL COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE STA 93 750.00$          69,750.00$                1,600.00$         148,800.00$               
9 2115-0100000 MODIFIED SUBBASE, 12 IN CY  24513 45.00$            1,103,085.00$           45.00$              1,103,085.00$            
10 2123-7450020 SHOULDER FINISHING, EARTH STA 184 450.00$          82,800.00$                500.00$            92,000.00$                 
11 2213-7100400 RELOCATION OF MAIL BOXES EACH 1 500.00$          500.00$                     750.00$            750.00$                      
12 2301-1033060 STANDARD OR SLIP FORM PCC PAVEMENT, CLASS C, CLASS 3 DURABILITY, 6 IN. SY  1594 55.00$            87,670.00$                105.00$            167,370.00$               
13 2301-1033085 STANDARD OR SLIP FORM PCC PAVEMENT, CLASS C, CLASS 3 DURABILITY, 8.5 IN. SY  54407 56.00$            3,046,792.00$           67.50$              3,672,472.50$            
14 2301-6911722 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT SAMPLES LS 1 4,000.00$       4,000.00$                  20,000.00$       20,000.00$                 
15 2301-7000110 PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT INCENTIVE/DISINCENTIVE FOR PCC PAVEMENT THICKNESS (BY SCHEDULE) EACH 48967 1.00$              48,967.00$                1.00$                48,967.00$                 
16 2303-0002380 HOT MIX ASPHALT MIXTURE INTERLAYER BASE COURSE, 3/8 IN. MIX TON 46 55.00$            2,530.00$                  180.00$            8,280.00$                   
17 2303-1033500 HOT MIX ASPHALT STANDARD TRAFFIC, SURFACE COURSE, 1/2 IN. MI X, NO SPECIAL FRICTION REQUIREMENT TON 19 50.00$            950.00$                     180.00$            3,420.00$                   
18 2303-1258283 ASPHALT BINDER, PG 58-28S, STANDARD TRAFFIC TON 4 650.00$          2,600.00$                  775.00$            3,100.00$                   
19 2304-0100000 DETOUR PAVEMENT SY 11790 60.00$            707,400.00$              55.00$              648,450.00$               
20 2312-8260051 GRANULAR SURFACING ON ROAD, CLASS A CRUSHED STONE TON 2886 26.00$            75,036.00$                42.50$              122,655.00$               
21 2316-0000110 PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT INCENTIVE/DISINCENTIVE FOR PCC PAVEMENT SMOOTHNESS (BY SCHEDULE) EACH 40806 1.00$              40,806.00$                1.00$                40,806.00$                 
22 2401-6745356 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE FOOTINGS OF LIGHT POLES EACH 56 800.00$          44,800.00$                550.00$            30,800.00$                 
23 2401-6745650 REMOVAL OF EXISTING STRUCTURES LS 1 50,000.00$     50,000.00$                40,000.00$       40,000.00$                 
24 2401-6745765 REMOVAL OF LIGHT POLES EACH 56 400.00$          22,400.00$                500.00$            28,000.00$                 
25 2401-6745910 REMOVAL OF SIGN EACH 87 80.00$            6,960.00$                  150.00$            13,050.00$                 
26 2401-6750001 REMOVALS, AS PER PLAN LS 1 50,000.00$     50,000.00$                50,000.00$       50,000.00$                 
27 2402-0425031 GRANULAR BACKFILL TON 2723 30.00$            81,690.00$                28.00$              76,244.00$                 
28 2402-0425040 FLOODED BACKFILL CY 174 40.00$            6,960.00$                  50.00$              8,700.00$                   
29 2402-2720000 EXCAVATION, CLASS 20 CY 7505 20.00$            150,100.00$              16.00$              120,080.00$               
30 2402-2722000 EXCAVATION, CLASS 22 CY 149 100.00$          14,900.00$                25.00$              3,725.00$                   
31 2402-3825025 GRANULAR MATERIAL FOR BLANKET CY 509 70.00$            35,630.00$                67.50$              34,357.50$                 
32 2403-0100000 STRUCTURAL CONCRETE (MISC) CY 286 1,400.00$       399,840.00$              625.00$            178,500.00$               
33 2403-0100020 STRUCTURAL CONCRETE (RCB) CY 1448 700.00$          1,013,460.00$           735.00$            1,064,133.00$            
34 2404-7775000 REINFORCING STEEL LB 274210 2.00$              548,420.00$              2.00$                548,420.00$               
35 2414-6444100 STEEL PIPE PEDESTRIAN HAND RAILING LF 250 200.00$          50,000.00$                200.00$            50,000.00$                 
36 2414-6460000 ORNAMENTAL METAL RAILING LF 454 300.00$          136,200.00$              700.00$            317,800.00$               
37 2415-2110804 PRECAST CONCRETE BOX CULVERT, 8 FT. X 4 FT. LF 235 1,265.00$       297,275.00$              1,900.00$         446,500.00$               
38 2415-2200804 PRECAST CONCRETE BOX CULVERT, STRAIGHT END SECTION, 8 FT. X 4 FT. EACH 1 7,500.00$       7,500.00$                  25,000.00$       25,000.00$                 
39 2416-0100024 APRONS, CONCRETE, 24 IN. DIA. EACH 1 1,500.00$       1,500.00$                  4,500.00$         4,500.00$                   
40 2430-0000100 MODULAR BLOCK RETAINING WALL SF 148 50.00$            7,400.00$                  50.00$              7,400.00$                   
41 2435-0130148 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301, 48 IN. EACH 18 6,000.00$       108,000.00$              11,000.00$       198,000.00$               
42 2435-0140148 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 48 IN. EACH 6 4,500.00$       27,000.00$                5,000.00$         30,000.00$                 
43 2435-0140160 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 60 IN. EACH 3 6,000.00$       18,000.00$                6,750.00$         20,250.00$                 
44 2435-0140200 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-402, 6 X 6 EACH 1 6,000.00$       6,000.00$                  13,000.00$       13,000.00$                 
45 2435-0250248 INTAKE, SW-502, 48 IN. EACH 1 4,000.00$       4,000.00$                  6,750.00$         6,750.00$                   
46 2435-0250260 INTAKE, SW-502, 60 IN. EACH 5 6,250.00$       31,250.00$                10,250.00$       51,250.00$                 
47 2435-0250272 INTAKE, SW-502, 72 IN. EACH 1 7,500.00$       7,500.00$                  11,000.00$       11,000.00$                 
48 2435-0250284 INTAKE, SW-502, 84 IN. EACH 1 10,000.00$     10,000.00$                17,500.00$       17,500.00$                 
49 2435-0250500 INTAKE, SW-505 EACH 5 6,000.00$       30,000.00$                8,500.00$         42,500.00$                 
50 2435-0250510 INTAKE, SW-505 MODIFIED TRIPLE EACH 5 8,000.00$       40,000.00$                12,250.00$       61,250.00$                 
51 2435-0250600 INTAKE, SW-506 EACH 2 6,000.00$       12,000.00$                13,500.00$       27,000.00$                 
52 2435-0250610 INTAKE, SW-506 MODIFIED TRIPLE EACH 2 8,000.00$       16,000.00$                18,500.00$       37,000.00$                 
53 2435-0250700 INTAKE, SW-507 EACH 28 6,000.00$       168,000.00$              7,000.00$         196,000.00$               
54 2435-0250800 INTAKE, SW-508 EACH 2 6,500.00$       13,000.00$                9,000.00$         18,000.00$                 
55 2435-0250900 INTAKE, SW-509 EACH 48 6,500.00$       312,000.00$              9,000.00$         432,000.00$               
56 2435-0250914 INTAKE, SW-509 MODIFIED, TOP ONLY EACH 2 3,000.00$       6,000.00$                  4,000.00$         8,000.00$                   
57 2435-0251000 INTAKE, SW-510 EACH 4 7,500.00$       30,000.00$                12,000.00$       48,000.00$                 
58 2435-0254100 INTAKE, SW-541 EACH 2 7,000.00$       14,000.00$                11,000.00$       22,000.00$                 
59 2435-0254200 INTAKE, SW-542 EACH 5 7,000.00$       35,000.00$                9,000.00$         45,000.00$                 
60 2435-0400308 INTERNAL DROP CONNECTION, SW-308 EACH 1 2,200.00$       2,200.00$                  5,750.00$         5,750.00$                   
61 2435-0600010 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MINOR EACH 7 1,500.00$       10,500.00$                2,250.00$         15,750.00$                 
62 2435-0600020 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MAJOR EACH 1 2,500.00$       2,500.00$                  3,250.00$         3,250.00$                   
63 2435-0700020 CONNECTION TO EXISTING INTAKE EACH 5 1,500.00$       7,500.00$                  2,750.00$         13,750.00$                 
64 2502-8212036 SUBDRAIN, LONGITUDINAL, (SHOULDER) 6 IN. DIA. LF 10698 17.00$            181,866.00$              15.50$              165,819.00$               
65 2502-8221303 SUBDRAIN OUTLET, DR-303 EACH 142 250.00$          35,500.00$                400.00$            56,800.00$                 
66 2503-0111015 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLEN E PIPE (HDPE), 15 IN. LF 1301 51.00$            66,351.00$                85.00$              110,585.00$               
67 2503-0111018 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLEN E PIPE (HDPE), 18 IN. LF 414 55.00$            22,770.00$                95.00$              39,330.00$                 
68 2503-0111024 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLEN E PIPE (HDPE), 24 IN. LF 1135 59.00$            66,965.00$                160.00$            181,600.00$               
69 2503-0111030 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLEN E PIPE (HDPE), 30 IN. LF 802 80.00$            64,160.00$                125.00$            100,250.00$               
70 2503-0111036 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLEN E PIPE (HDPE), 36 IN. LF 159 100.00$          15,900.00$                200.00$            31,800.00$                 
71 2503-0114212 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, RCP, 2000D (CLASS III), 12 IN. LF 15 60.00$            900.00$                     2,100.00$         31,500.00$                 
72 2503-0114215 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, RCP, 2000D (CLASS III), 15 IN. LF 2775 65.00$            180,375.00$              115.00$            319,125.00$               
73 2503-0114218 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, RCP, 2000D (CLASS III), 18 IN. LF 1146 70.00$            80,220.00$                120.00$            137,520.00$               
74 2503-0114224 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, RCP, 2000D (CLASS III), 24 IN. LF 1303 90.00$            117,270.00$              135.00$            175,905.00$               
75 2503-0114230 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, RCP, 2000D (CLASS III), 30 IN. LF 450 105.00$          47,250.00$                185.00$            83,250.00$                 
76 2503-0114236 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, RCP, 2000D (CLASS III), 36 IN. LF 671 120.00$          80,520.00$                220.00$            147,620.00$               
77 2503-0114242 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, RCP, 2000D (CLASS III), 42 IN. LF 11 150.00$          1,650.00$                  330.00$            3,630.00$                   
78 2503-0200036 REMOVE STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. LF 4579 24.00$            109,896.00$              50.00$              228,950.00$               
79 2503-0200136 REMOVE STORM SEWER PIPE GREATER THAN 36 IN. LF 147 44.00$            6,468.00$                  85.00$              12,495.00$                 
80 2503-0200341 STORM SEWER ABANDONMENT, FILL AND PLUG, LESS THAN OR EQUAL T O 36 IN. DIA. LF 41 68.00$            2,788.00$                  125.00$            5,125.00$                   
81 2504-0112227 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, RCP, 2000D (CLASS III), 27 IN. LF 103 400.00$          41,200.00$                725.00$            74,675.00$                 
82 2504-0114008 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC, 8 IN., TRUSS LF 1690 80.00$            135,200.00$              356.00$            601,640.00$               
83 2504-0114010 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC, 10 IN., TRUSS LF 98 85.00$            8,330.00$                  400.00$            39,200.00$                 
84 2504-0114012 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC, 12 IN., TRUSS LF 383 95.00$            36,385.00$                410.00$            157,030.00$               
85 2504-0114015 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC, 15 IN., TRUSS LF 5027 105.00$          527,835.00$              430.00$            2,161,610.00$            
86 2504-0134008 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN WITH CASING PIPE, TRENCHED, PVC, 8 IN., TRUSS LF 30 290.00$          8,700.00$                  570.00$            17,100.00$                 
87 2504-0200404 SANITARY SEWER SERVICE STUB, POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 4 IN. LF 4493 70.00$            314,510.00$              215.00$            965,995.00$               
88 2504-0240036 REMOVE SANITARY SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. LF 6846 25.00$            171,150.00$              23.00$              157,458.00$               
89 2505-4008300 STEEL BEAM GUARDRAIL LF 128 32.00$            4,096.00$                  125.00$            16,000.00$                 
90 2507-3250005 ENGINEERING FABRIC SY 1023 4.00$              4,092.00$                  2.50$                2,557.50$                   
91 2507-4011100 CONCRETE GROUT FOR REVETMENT OF GABION CY 36 250.00$          9,000.00$                  300.00$            10,800.00$                 
92 2507-6800061 REVETMENT, CLASS E                TON 1040 60.00$            62,400.00$                45.00$              46,800.00$                 
93 2510-6745850 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 70195 9.00$              631,755.00$              9.00$                631,755.00$               
94 2510-6750600 REMOVAL OF INTAKE AND UTILITY ACCESS           EACH 115 650.00$          74,750.00$                1,150.00$         132,250.00$               
95 2511-6745900 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY 8291 10.00$            82,910.00$                9.00$                74,619.00$                 
96 2511-7526004 SIDEWALK, PCC, 4 IN. SY 9624 45.00$            433,080.00$              43.00$              413,832.00$               
97 2511-7526006 SIDEWALK, PCC, 6 IN. SY 1392 50.00$            69,600.00$                54.00$              75,168.00$                 
98 2511-7528101 DETECTABLE WARNING SF 2100 49.00$            102,900.00$              70.00$              147,000.00$               
99 2512-1725206 CURB AND GUTTER, P.C. CONCRETE, 2.0 FT. LF 288 29.00$            8,352.00$                  50.00$              14,400.00$                 

100 2512-1859000 CURB, SPECIAL, AS PER PLAN LF 447 70.00$            31,290.00$                40.00$              17,880.00$                 
101 2515-2475006 DRIVEWAY, PCC, 6 IN. SY 4226 65.00$            274,690.00$              51.00$              215,526.00$               
102 2515-6745600 REMOVAL OF PAVED DRIVEWAY SY 5261 12.00$            63,132.00$                9.00$                47,349.00$                 
103 2516-8625000 COMBINED CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND RETAINING WALL CY 316 825.00$          260,700.00$              1,100.00$         347,600.00$               
104 2519-4200090 REMOVAL AND REINSTALLATION OF FENCE, WOOD LF 47 65.00$            3,055.00$                  200.00$            9,400.00$                   
105 2520-3350015 FIELD OFFICE EACH 1 25,000.00$     25,000.00$                15,000.00$       15,000.00$                 
106 2523-0000100 LIGHTING POLES EACH 72 3,000.00$       216,000.00$              3,000.00$         216,000.00$               
107 2523-0000200 ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS LF 14170 20.00$            283,400.00$              10.00$              141,700.00$               
108 2523-0000310 HANDHOLE AND JUNCTION BOX EACH 9 600.00$          5,400.00$                  1,700.00$         15,300.00$                 
109 2524-6765010 REMOVE AND REINSTALL SIGN AS PER PLAN EACH 13 300.00$          3,900.00$                  300.00$            3,900.00$                   
110 2524-9276010 PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POSTS LF 1320 12.00$            15,840.00$                22.00$              29,040.00$                 
111 2524-9276021 PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POST ANCHOR, BREAK-AWAY SOIL IN STALLATION EACH 109 200.00$          21,800.00$                200.00$            21,800.00$                 
112 2524-9276024 PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POST ANCHOR, BREAK-AWAY CONCRET E INSTALLATION EACH 24 450.00$          10,800.00$                350.00$            8,400.00$                   
113 2524-9325001 TYPE A SIGNS, SHEET ALUMINUM SF 1176 24.00$            28,224.00$                22.00$              25,872.00$                 
114 2525-0000100 TRAFFIC SIGNALIZATION LS 1 250,000.00$   250,000.00$              320,000.00$     320,000.00$               
115 2525-0000120 REMOVAL OF TRAFFIC SIGNALIZATION LS 1 35,000.00$     35,000.00$                45,000.00$       45,000.00$                 
116 2526-8285000 CONSTRUCTION SURVEY LS 1 195,000.00$   195,000.00$              275,000.00$     275,000.00$               
117 2527-9263109 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKING, WATERBORNE OR SOLVENT-BASED STA 620 70.00$            43,421.00$                95.00$              58,928.50$                 
118 2527-9263131 WET RETROREFLECTIVE REMOVABLE TAPE MARKINGS STA 181 125.00$          22,575.00$                130.00$            23,478.00$                 
119 2527-9263137 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS, WATERBORNE OR SOLVENT-BASED EACH 180 115.00$          20,700.00$                100.00$            18,000.00$                 
120 2527-9263180 PAVEMENT MARKINGS REMOVED STA 239 32.00$            7,635.20$                  95.00$              22,667.00$                 
121 2528-2518000 SAFETY CLOSURES EACH 56 150.00$          8,400.00$                  150.00$            8,400.00$                   
122 2528-5160000 NO EXCUSE ROAD OPENING BONUS, SITE ID 01, 11/15/2023 LS 1 215,000.00$   215,000.00$              215,000.00$     215,000.00$               
123 2528-5160000 NO EXCUSE ROAD OPENING BONUS, SITE ID 02, 11/15/2024 LS 1 215,000.00$   215,000.00$              215,000.00$     215,000.00$               
124 2528-8400048 TEMPORARY BARRIER RAIL, CONCRETE LF 12750 20.00$            255,000.00$              15.00$              191,250.00$               
125 2528-8400256 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC SIGNALS EACH 8 20,000.00$     160,000.00$              14,000.00$       112,000.00$               
126 2528-8445110 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 390,000.00$   390,000.00$              175,000.00$     175,000.00$               
127 2528-9290050 PORTABLE DYNAMIC MESSAGE SIGN (PDMS) CDAY 112 150.00$          16,800.00$                100.00$            11,200.00$                 
128 2533-4980005 MOBILIZATION LS 1 975,000.00$   975,000.00$              2,575,000.00$  2,575,000.00$            
129 2552-0000300 TRENCH COMPACTION TESTING LS 1 6,000.00$       6,000.00$                  22,500.00$       22,500.00$                 
130 2554-0112004 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, CLASS 52, 4 IN. LF 246 75.00$            18,450.00$                130.00$            31,980.00$                 
131 2554-0112006 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, CLASS 52, 6 IN. LF 133 80.00$            10,640.00$                120.00$            15,960.00$                 
132 2554-0112008 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, CLASS 52, 8 IN. LF 1368 85.00$            116,280.00$              130.00$            177,840.00$               
133 2554-0112012 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, CLASS 52, 12 IN. LF 7768 100.00$          776,800.00$              150.00$            1,165,200.00$            
134 2554-0203000 FITTINGS BY WEIGHT, DUCTILE IRON LB 13177 15.00$            197,655.00$              30.00$              395,310.00$               
135 2554-0205107 WATER SERVICE STUB, COPPER, 3/4 IN. LF 2875 35.00$            100,625.00$              140.00$            402,500.00$               
136 2554-0205110 WATER SERVICE STUB, COPPER, 1 IN. LF 548 37.00$            20,276.00$                140.00$            76,720.00$                 
137 2554-0205115 WATER SERVICE STUB, COPPER, 1 1/2 IN. LF 317 39.00$            12,363.00$                125.00$            39,625.00$                 
138 2554-0205600 WATER SERVICE CURB STOP AND BOX EACH 114 750.00$          85,500.00$                1,850.00$         210,900.00$               
139 2554-0207004 VALVE, GATE, DIP, 4 IN. EACH 5 1,250.00$       6,250.00$                  2,500.00$         12,500.00$                 
140 2554-0207008 VALVE, GATE, DIP, 8 IN. EACH 19 2,500.00$       47,500.00$                3,250.00$         61,750.00$                 
141 2554-0207012 VALVE, GATE, DIP, 12 IN. EACH 26 3,000.00$       78,000.00$                5,000.00$         130,000.00$               
142 2554-0210201 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY, WM-201 EACH 26 6,000.00$       156,000.00$              9,500.00$         247,000.00$               
143 2554-0210205 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY REMOVAL EACH 14 850.00$          11,900.00$                1,500.00$         21,000.00$                 
144 2554-0212050 VALVE BOX REMOVAL EACH 42 300.00$          12,600.00$                750.00$            31,500.00$                 
145 2555-0000010 DELIVER AND STOCKPILE SALVAGED MATERIALS LS 1 500.00$          500.00$                     5,000.00$         5,000.00$                   
146 2599-9999003 CONCRETE STEPS, CAST-IN-PLACE CY 62 800.00$          49,600.00$                1,300.00$         80,600.00$                 
147 2599-9999003 LANDSCAPING, PLANTING SOIL CY 74 35.00$            2,590.00$                  45.00$              3,330.00$                   
148 2599-9999005 GASKET, FIELD LOK, WATER MAIN, 12 IN EACH 59 235.00$          13,865.00$                500.00$            29,500.00$                 
149 2599-9999005 GASKET, FIELD LOK, WATER MAIN, 4 IN EACH 3 190.00$          570.00$                     275.00$            825.00$                      
150 2599-9999005 GASKET, FIELD LOK, WATER MAIN, 6 IN EACH 1 205.00$          205.00$                     300.00$            300.00$                      
151 2599-9999005 GASKET, FIELD LOK, WATER MAIN, 8 IN EACH 22 220.00$          4,840.00$                  350.00$            7,700.00$                   
152 2599-9999005 GASKET, NITRILE, WATER MAIN, 12 IN EACH 69 90.00$            6,210.00$                  225.00$            15,525.00$                 

PETERSON CONTRACTORS INC

ITEM NO. ITEM CODE ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT

BID TABULATION

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

Main Street Reconstruction from Seerley Blvd to 6th Street

Iowa DOT No.   STBG-SWAP-1185(657)--SG-07

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE

QUANTITY

Page 1

213

Item 24.



UNIT PRICE
 EXTENDED 

AMOUNT 
UNIT PRICE EXTENDED AMOUNT

PETERSON CONTRACTORS INC

ITEM NO. ITEM CODE ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE

QUANTITY

153 2599-9999005 GASKET, NITRILE, WATER MAIN, 4 IN EACH 8 60.00$            480.00$                     200.00$            1,600.00$                   
154 2599-9999005 GASKET, NITRILE, WATER MAIN, 8 IN EACH 58 80.00$            4,640.00$                  200.00$            11,600.00$                 
155 2599-9999005 LANDSCAPING, BENCHES EACH 4 3,000.00$       12,000.00$                2,500.00$         10,000.00$                 
156 2599-9999005 LANDSCAPING, BUS SHELTERS EACH 4 15,000.00$     60,000.00$                28,000.00$       112,000.00$               
157 2599-9999005 LANDSCAPING, PLANTS EACH 213 35.00$            7,455.00$                  20.00$              4,260.00$                   
158 2599-9999005 LANDSCAPING, TRASH RECEPTACLES EACH 4 2,200.00$       8,800.00$                  2,500.00$         10,000.00$                 
159 2599-9999005 LANDSCAPING, TREE GRATES EACH 7 650.00$          4,550.00$                  5,000.00$         35,000.00$                 
160 2599-9999005 LIGHTING POLES 14', INSTALL ONLY EACH 7 2,000.00$       14,000.00$                1,500.00$         10,500.00$                 
161 2599-9999005 LIGHTING POLES 33'-6", INSTALL ONLY EACH 5 3,000.00$       15,000.00$                1,200.00$         6,000.00$                   
162 2599-9999005 MODIFY STORM SEWER STRUCTURE TOP EACH 3 750.00$          2,250.00$                  4,000.00$         12,000.00$                 
163 2599-9999005 SUBDRAIN, CLEANOUTS, 6" PVC, TYPE A-1 EACH 54 500.00$          27,000.00$                1,250.00$         67,500.00$                 
164 2599-9999005 TEMPORARY STORM SEWER CONNECTION EACH 6 1,000.00$       6,000.00$                  2,750.00$         16,500.00$                 
165 2599-9999009 REMOVAL OF WATER MAIN LF 600 12.00$            7,200.00$                  35.00$              21,000.00$                 
166 2599-9999009 WATER MAIN DIP PIPE INSULATION LF 180 115.00$          20,700.00$                125.00$            22,500.00$                 
167 2599-9999010 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1 10,000.00$     10,000.00$                25,000.00$       25,000.00$                 
168 2599-9999010 EMERGENCY VEHICLE WARNING BEACON SYSTEM LS 1 20,000.00$     20,000.00$                40,000.00$       40,000.00$                 
169 2599-9999010 LANDSCAPING, 12TH STREET ROUNDABOUT MASONRY COLUMNS LS 1 180,000.00$   180,000.00$              125,000.00$     125,000.00$               
170 2599-9999010 LANDSCAPING, 18TH STREET ROUNDABOUT MASONRY COLUMN LS 1 100,000.00$   100,000.00$              60,000.00$       60,000.00$                 
171 2599-9999010 LANDSCAPING, ARCHING GATEWAY FEATURE LS 1 342,400.00$   342,400.00$              300,000.00$     300,000.00$               
172 2599-9999010 LANDSCAPING, CAST STONE SIGN WALLS LS 1 174,000.00$   174,000.00$              220,000.00$     220,000.00$               
173 2599-9999010 LANDSCAPING, SEERLEY BLVD ROUNDABOUT MASONRY COLUMN LS 1 261,350.00$   261,350.00$              200,000.00$     200,000.00$               
174 2599-9999010 RECTANGULAR RAPID FLASHING BEACON ASSEMBLY LS 1 27,000.00$     27,000.00$                30,000.00$       30,000.00$                 
175 2599-9999010 STORM SEWER MANHOLE, S-96, 11 FT. X 11 FT. LS 1 18,000.00$     18,000.00$                20,000.00$       20,000.00$                 
176 2599-9999010 STORM SEWER MANHOLE, S-97, 11 FT. X 11 FT. LS 1 18,000.00$     18,000.00$                20,000.00$       20,000.00$                 
177 2599-9999010 STORM SEWER MANHOLE, S-98, 11 FT. X 11 FT. LS 1 18,000.00$     18,000.00$                20,000.00$       20,000.00$                 
178 2599-9999010 WOODEN STEPS AND PORCH REPAIRS, PARCEL 198 LS 1 5,000.00$       5,000.00$                  30,000.00$       30,000.00$                 
179 2599-9999014 LANDSCAPING, PAVERS SF 22373 20.35$            455,290.55$              17.50$              391,527.50$               
180 2599-9999018 BRICK PAVER, REMOVE AND REINSTALL SY 17 350.00$          5,950.00$                  180.00$            3,060.00$                   
181 2599-9999020 GRANULAR BEDDING TON 252 30.00$            7,560.00$                  28.00$              7,056.00$                   
182 2599-9999020 LANDSCAPING, MULCH TON 36 100.00$          3,600.00$                  175.00$            6,300.00$                   
183 2601-2634150 MULCHING, WOOD CELLULOSE FIBER ACRE 4 2,000.00$       8,200.00$                  3,000.00$         12,300.00$                 
184 2601-2636044 SEEDING AND FERTILIZING (URBAN) ACRE 4 2,500.00$       10,250.00$                9,500.00$         38,950.00$                 
185 2601-2638352 SLOPE PROTECTION, WOOD EXCELSIOR MAT SQ 336 30.00$            10,080.00$                35.00$              11,760.00$                 
186 2601-2639010 SODDING SQ 1417 80.00$            113,384.00$              75.00$              106,297.50$               
187 2601-2642120 STABILIZING CROP - SEEDING AND FERTILIZING (URBAN) ACRE 10 1,500.00$       14,535.00$                1,800.00$         17,442.00$                 
188 2602-0000309 PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. DIA. LF 18607 2.50$              46,517.50$                2.00$                37,214.00$                 
189 2602-0000351 REMOVAL OF PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE LF 18607 0.50$              9,303.50$                  0.50$                9,303.50$                   
190 2602-0000500 OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER, EC-602 LF 560 12.50$            7,000.00$                  18.50$              10,360.00$                 
191 2602-0000510 MAINTENANCE OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 89 12.50$            1,112.50$                  35.00$              3,115.00$                   
192 2602-0000520 REMOVAL OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 89 12.50$            1,112.50$                  35.00$              3,115.00$                   
193 2602-0000530 GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EACH 43 160.00$          6,880.00$                  135.00$            5,805.00$                   
194 2602-0000540 MAINTENANCE OF GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EACH 43 37.00$            1,591.00$                  40.00$              1,720.00$                   
195 2602-0000550 REMOVAL OF GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EACH 43 55.00$            2,365.00$                  40.00$              1,720.00$                   
196 2602-0010010 MOBILIZATIONS, EROSION CONTROL EACH 20 500.00$          10,000.00$                500.00$            10,000.00$                 
197 2610-0000110 SHRUBS EACH 45 45.00$            2,025.00$                  75.00$              3,375.00$                   
198 2610-0000120 TREES EACH 279 525.00$          146,475.00$              425.00$            118,575.00$               
199 2610-0000400 WATERING FOR PLANTS MGAL 60 300.00$          18,000.00$                140.00$            8,400.00$                   
200 2435-0130160 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301, 60 IN. EACH 8 10,000.00$     80,000.00$                22,500.00$       180,000.00$               
201 2601-2633100 MOWING ACRE 1 400.00$          400.00$                     165.00$            165.00$                      

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION 21,383,759.75$         29,997,049.50$          

Page 2

214

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: December 12, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements Project 
  City Project Number: MC-038-3290 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Tuesday, November 23, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. bids were received and opened for the 
Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements Project. A total of two (2) bids were 
received. The apparent low bidder was Peterson Contractors, Inc. of Reinbeck, Iowa with 
a base bid of $6,279,130.00. The following table provides the breakdown of base bid and 
base bid with alternates received: 
 

 Base Bid Base Bid + Alternates 

Engineering Estimate $4,655,231.80 $5,772,178.80 

Peterson Contractors, Inc. $6,279,130.00 $7,428,295.00 

TSP Services, Inc. $6,489,914.35 $8,500,937.51 

 
The total estimated base bid cost for the construction of this project is $4,655,231.80. The 
City is planning on using General Obligation Bonds, EDA Grant, Emergency Reserve, 
Blackhawk Gaming Grant, General Revenue, General Fund Savings, Hotel Motel-Parks, 
Tourism Cash Reserves and Private Donations for the construction of this project.  
 
The Engineering Division is recommending approval of solely the base bid, in the amount 
of $6,279,130.00, from Peterson Contractors, Inc. of Reinbeck, Iowa for the Recreational 
River Area and Riverbank Improvements Project. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer   

215

Item 25.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 11,020-A Mobilization LS 1 $721,500.00 $721,500.00 $580,000.00 $580,000.00 $407,329.68 $407,329.68

2 2010-B Clearing and Grubbing AC 2 $3,500.00 $7,000.00 $15,000.00 $30,000.00 $4,548.55 $9,097.10

3 9010-A Conventional Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching AC 2.8 $3,900.00 $10,920.00 $8,000.00 $22,400.00 $32,980.30 $92,344.84

4 9040-A-2 SWPPP Management LS 1 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00

5 9040-F-1 Straw Waddle, 9", 25 ft. Length LF 300 $4.00 $1,200.00 $5.00 $1,500.00 $14.31 $4,293.00

6 9040-N-1 Silt Fencing LF 1500 $3.50 $5,250.00 $5.00 $7,500.00 $15.20 $22,800.00

7 9040-O-1 Stabilized Construction Entrance SY 1157 $8.00 $9,256.00 $20.00 $23,140.00 $45.79 $52,979.03

8 9060-A Chain Link Fence,  Galvanized 11.5 Gauge Type, 72" Size LF 1500 $8.00 $12,000.00 $25.00 $37,500.00 $74.53 $111,795.00

9 9060-F Temporary Fencing, Orange Plastic 10MIL LF 300 $8.00 $2,400.00 $4.50 $1,350.00 $22.66 $6,798.00

10 - Cofferdam Installation and Removal LS 1 $955,500.00 $955,500.00 $2,500,000.00 $2,500,000.00 $676,264.47 $676,264.47

11 11,010-A Construction Survey LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $125,000.00 $125,000.00 $33,359.95 $33,359.95

12 - As-Built Construction Survey LS 1 $5,400.00 $5,400.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $15,036.00 $15,036.00

13 7030-C Trail Replacement, Shared Use Path, PCC, 6" thick SY 3422 $33.00 $112,926.00 $85.00 $290,870.00 $198.09 $677,863.98

14 11,050-A Concrete Washout EA 2 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $10,328.50 $20,657.00

15 - River Right Access Road LS 1 $65,000.00 $65,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $442,773.00 $442,773.00

16 - Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement, grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. TON 166 $240.10 $39,856.60 $260.00 $43,160.00 $795.80 $132,102.80

17 - Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids. CY Concrete 77 $536.30 $41,295.10 $225.00 $17,325.00 $1,112.84 $85,688.68

18 - Concrete - low flow CY Concrete 35 $536.30 $18,770.50 $1,200.00 $42,000.00 $2,349.34 $82,226.90

19 - Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble TON 498 $72.00 $35,856.00 $60.00 $29,880.00 $133.93 $66,697.14

20 - Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement, grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. TON 249 $240.10 $59,784.90 $260.00 $64,740.00 $621.64 $154,788.36

21 - Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids. CY Concrete 115 $536.30 $61,674.50 $225.00 $25,875.00 $1,058.63 $121,742.45

22 - Concrete- low flow CY Concrete 22 $536.30 $11,798.60 $1,200.00 $26,400.00 $2,464.50 $54,219.00

23 - Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble TON 371 $72.00 $26,712.00 $60.00 $22,260.00 $142.91 $53,019.61

24 - Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement, grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. TON 98 $240.10 $23,529.80 $260.00 $25,480.00 $653.36 $64,029.28

25 - Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids. CY Concrete 45 $536.30 $24,133.50 $225.00 $10,125.00 $1,387.36 $62,431.20

26 - Concrete- low flow CY Concrete 35 $536.30 $18,770.50 $1,200.00 $42,000.00 $2,347.04 $82,146.40

27 - Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble TON 98 $72.00 $7,056.00 $60.00 $5,880.00 $197.78 $19,382.44

28 - Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement, grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. TON 200 $240.10 $48,020.00 $260.00 $52,000.00 $684.24 $136,848.00

29 - Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids. CY Concrete 93 $536.30 $49,875.90 $225.00 $20,925.00 $1,310.42 $121,869.06

30 - Concrete- low flow CY Concrete 28 $536.30 $15,016.40 $1,200.00 $33,600.00 $2,900.27 $81,207.56

31 - Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble TON 948 $72.00 $68,256.00 $60.00 $56,880.00 $140.28 $132,985.44

32 - Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement, grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. TON 312 $240.10 $74,911.20 $260.00 $81,120.00 $659.62 $205,801.44

33 - Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids. CY Concrete 145 $536.30 $77,763.50 $225.00 $32,625.00 $1,270.47 $184,218.15

34 - Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble TON 648 $72.00 $46,656.00 $60.00 $38,880.00 $162.06 $105,014.88

35 - Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement, grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. TON 243 $240.10 $58,344.30 $260.00 $63,180.00 $568.85 $138,230.55

36 - Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids. CY Concrete 108 $536.30 $57,920.40 $225.00 $24,300.00 $1,264.60 $136,576.80

37 - Concrete- low flow CY Concrete 115 $536.00 $61,640.00 $1,200.00 $138,000.00 $2,250.31 $258,785.65

38 - Concrete Demolition and Shaping LS 1 $87,750.00 $87,750.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $53,507.00 $53,507.00

39 - Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble TON 1140 $72.00 $82,080.00 $60.00 $68,400.00 $121.94 $139,011.60

40 - Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement, grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. TON 68 $240.10 $16,326.80 $260.00 $17,680.00 $610.54 $41,516.72

41 - Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids. CY Concrete 31 $536.30 $16,625.30 $225.00 $6,975.00 $1,323.10 $41,016.10

43 - Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble TON 203 $72.00 $14,616.00 $60.00 $12,180.00 $192.62 $39,101.86

44 - Large Random Boulders, 7' Diameter EA 23 $1,150.00 $26,450.00 $5,000.00 $115,000.00 $1,730.83 $39,809.09

45 - Miscellaneous Equipment Hours HR 200 $535.00 $107,000.00 $300.00 $60,000.00 $415.00 $83,000.00

47 2010-A Clearing and Grubbing Concrete/Rebar River Clean Up CY 25 $200.00 $5,000.00 $325.00 $8,125.00 $1,232.76 $30,819.00

48 2010-E Excavation, Class 13 River Left additional fill CY 220 $50.00 $11,000.00 $35.00 $7,700.00 $169.60 $37,312.00

49 2010-E Excavation, Class 13  River Right additional fill CY 175 $50.00 $8,750.00 $35.00 $6,125.00 $189.26 $33,120.50

50 7030-C Shared Use Path (6? wide 6? depth) SY 927 $180.00 $166,860.00 $150.00 $139,050.00 $257.93 $239,101.11

51 - Special Concrete-Stained and Stamped SY 83 $450.00 $37,350.00 $3,250.00 $269,750.00 $853.82 $70,867.06

52 - Lower Terrace Concrete - Special (Turtle) SY 114 $450.00 $51,300.00 $2,000.00 $228,000.00 $1,162.86 $132,566.04

53 - Concrete Expansion Joints and Dowels EA 20 $500.00 $10,000.00 $500.00 $10,000.00 $412.36 $8,247.20

54 - Stone Bank Reinforcements TON 1218 $685.00 $834,330.00 $125.00 $152,250.00 $128.32 $156,293.76

55 - Specialty Stone @ Upper Plaza TON 200 $685.00 $137,000.00 $325.00 $65,000.00 $350.00 $70,000.00

56 8020-B Parking lot Painting, Signs, and Bollards EA 2 $2,800.00 $5,600.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $8,625.30 $17,250.60

57 - Signage, 4 Large and 5 Small EA 12 $5,850.00 $70,200.00 $6,000.00 $72,000.00 $5,931.47 $71,177.64

58 9030-C Planting Trees, Shrubs, Lawns LS 1 $93,000.00 $93,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $126,794.23 $126,794.23

$4,655,231.80 $6,279,130.00 $6,489,914.35

Alt. No. 1 - Remove Riprap and Replace with Boulder Fill TON 1507 $280.00 $421,960.00 $285.00 $429,495.00 $414.80 $625,103.60

Alt. No. 2 - Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids. Item shall be used in conjunction with Alt. No 1 CY Concrete 742 $536.00 $397,712.00 $225.00 $166,950.00 $722.48 $536,080.16

Alt. No. 3 - Lighting at Trees and Main Street Bridge LS 1 $99,000.00 $99,000.00 $270,000.00 $270,000.00 $455,561.51 $455,561.51

Alt. No. 4 - Lighting at 1st Street Bridge LS 1 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $255,185.51 $255,185.51

Alt. No. 5 - Shower LS 1 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $30,052.39 $30,052.39

Alt. No. 6 - Irrigation LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $38,387.03 $38,387.03

Alt. No. 7 - Concrete Mowbands LF 231 $25.00 $5,775.00 $120.00 $27,720.00 $166.16 $38,382.96

Alt. No. 8 - Benches EA 2 $12,250.00 $24,500.00 $15,000.00 $30,000.00 $16,135.00 $32,270.00

RECREATIONAL RIVER AREA AND RIVERBANK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT (#8280099)

Owner: Cedar Falls IA, City of

Solicitor: Cedar Falls IA, City of

11/23/2022 10:00 AM CST

Base Bid Total:

Instream Improvements - Structure #8 - Take-out River Left

Instream Improvements - Miscellaneous

Engineer Estimate Peterson Contractors Inc TSP Services, Inc

Upland Improvements - General

Alternate - No. #6

Alternate - No. #7

Alternate - No. #8

Instream Improvements - General

Instream Improvements - Structure #3

Instream Improvements - Structure #2 - Put-in River Right

Instream Improvements - Structure #4

Instream Improvements - Structure #5

Instream Improvements - Structure #6 - Take-Out River Right

Instream Improvements - Structure #7 - Clay Hole Safety and Recreational Improvements

Alternate - No. #1

Alternate - No. #2

Alternate - No. #3

Alternate - No. #4

Alternate - No. #5

216

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: December 12, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements Project 
  City Project Number: MC-038-3290 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. for the construction of the Recreational River Area and Riverbank 
Improvements Project. 
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the construction of the Recreational River Area and 
Riverbank Improvements Project. This project involves the construction of seven 
instream water features and upland improvements within, and on the banks, of the 
Cedar River in Cedar Falls, Iowa  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

217

Item 26.



218

Item 26.



219

Item 26.



220

Item 26.



221

Item 26.



222

Item 26.



223

Item 26.



224

Item 26.



225

Item 26.



226

Item 26.



227

Item 26.



228

Item 26.



229

Item 26.



230

Item 26.



231

Item 26.



232

Item 26.



233

Item 26.



234

Item 26.



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

11/29/2022

(319) 874-4242

22322

Peterson Contractors, Inc.
Reinbeck Motors Company, Inc.
PO Box A/104 Blackhawk St
Reinbeck, IA 50669

20079
37885
16535

A 2,000,000

CGD745990202 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 100,000

Blnkt Contractual 10,000

XCU Coverage 2,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

2,000,000A

CAS745990302 7/1/2022 7/1/2023

1,000,000B
42-XSF-100514-06 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 1,000,000

10,000
C

CWD745990102 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 1,000,000
N 1,000,000

1,000,000

D Leased/Rented Equipm CPP9267064-12 7/1/2022 Leased/Rented Equipm 5,000,000

D Equipment Floater CPP9267064-12 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 Cargo 2,500,000

RE: J22118 Cedar Falls Cedar River Rec Area 
The City of Cedar falls is named additional insured per written contract.

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

PETECON-02 SHOUSE

LSB Financial Services
302 Main St
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 InsuranceAdminTeam@mylsb.com

Greenwich Insurance Company
National Fire & Marine
XL Specialty Insurance Company
Zurich American Ins Co

X

7/1/2023

X
X

X
X

X X

X

X X

X
X

X

235

Item 26.



POLICY NUMBER: CGD7459902 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 24 04 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY
AGAINST OTHERS TO US (WAIVER OF SUBROGATION)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DESIGNATED SITES
POLLUTION LIABILITY LIMITED COVERAGE PART DESIGNATED SITES
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY DESIGNATED TANKS

SCHEDULE

The following is added to Paragraph 8. Transfer Of
Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us of
Section IV – Conditions:
We waive any right of recovery against the person(s)
or organization(s) shown in the Schedule above
because of payments we make under this Coverage
Part. Such waiver by us applies only to the extent that
the insured has waived its right of recovery against
such person(s) or organization(s) prior to loss. This
endorsement applies only to the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule above.

CG 24 04 12 19 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1

Name Of Person(s) Or Organization(s):

WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT EXECUTED PRIOR TO LOSS (EXCEPT 
WHERE NOT PERMITTED BY LAW).

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

236

Item 26.



                                  
              

                                                                

                               !     ""!  #    $#   %&              

                           !            
                                  

      "      
'(!    )*   +  , +*)!"!   !         - * !) )   )   ,(  "*..*/! 0  

        1       1    1    '    2  1    1 ' 

         

  #      $$%&% ' (  ')*+ $   +) ',)- 
 +  +  '%. &% ',)-   / &% ',)-      0 + $  1 + &% ')

1                1  31'    4   56        21      1    7          5  ''   
612   1           5  '         1     ' 1 '         ' 1 '$ 
1       ' '61'    6          
   1  31'       1     1  1  1   '   1  
                      #    2     '6   
8         9   8    8      '   1 1  8        
     7   ' '  '6   :   '     4 '6 
5  ''      ' 1 '    5  ''   1       '$ 

  "* + ,!*    ; !  ) ,*  *+-. ,  ,(!    ( ) . # !"  *,  (*/   <*  # /!.. <   (*/  !  ,(     .   ,!*  $ 

     /&% '       2   )  '  ')*+ $ !    +  ) )  ,* 
!  . )            ))!,!*  .  !     )  ,(   -   * = >  *  
* 0  !? ,!* = >   (*/   !   ,(     ( ) . #  < ,  * .@ 
/!,(    -  , ,*  .! <!.!,@  "*  8<*)!.@ ! A  @8# 8- *-  ,@ 
) + 0 8  *   8-   *  .    )   )   ,! ! 0  ! A  @8 
     )# !  /(*.  *  !  -  ,# <@  

     *     ,  *  *+!  !*  B *  
   '(    ,  *  *+!  !*   *"  ,(*     ,! 0 *  @*   

< ( ."B 
!   ,(  -  "* +     *" @*   * 0*! 0 *-   ,!*   "*  
,(    ))!,!*  .  !     )= >   ,  ,(   .*  ,!* = > 
)  !0  , )  <*  $ 
6*/       

    '(   !           ""* ) )  ,*     (   ))!,!*  . 
!     ) * .@  --.!   ,* ,(   C,  , -  +!,, ) <@ 
. /B   )

     "  *    0  - * !) ) ,* ,(   ))!,!*  . !     ) !  
  ; !  )  <@      * ,   ,  *    0   +  ,#  ,(  
!           ""* ) )  ,*     (   ))!,!*  .  !     )
/!..   *,  <   < * )    ,(    ,( ,  /(! (  @*       
  ; !  )  <@  ,(    * ,   ,  *    0   +  ,  ,* 
- * !)  "*     (  ))!,!*  . !     )$

   5!,(     -  ,  ,*  ,(   !           ""* ) )  ,*  ,(    
 ))!,!*  .  !     ) #  ,(   "*..*/! 0   ))!,!*  . 
 C .  !*    --.@  
'(!   !         )*    *,  --.@ ,* 8<*)!.@  ! A  @8 *  
8- *-  ,@ ) + 0 8 *     ! 0  ",    

    1..  /* D#  !  . )! 0  + ,  ! . #  -  ,   *  
 ; !-+  ,  "   ! ( )  !    *    ,!*   /!,(     ( 
/* D#  *   ,(   - *A  ,  =*,(    ,(        !  # 
+ ! ,       *    - !  >  ,* <  -  "* + ) <@ *  
*   < ( ."  *"  ,(    ))!,!*  .  !     )= >   ,  ,(  
.*  ,!*   *"  ,(    *    )  *-   ,!*    (    <    
 *+-. , )B * 

    '( ,  -* ,!*   *"  8@*    /* D8  * ,  *"  /(! (  ,(  
! A  @  *   ) + 0     !     (    <     - ,  ,*  !,  
! ,  ) )       <@    @  -   *   *   * 0  !? ,!*  
*,(    ,(     *,(    * ,   ,*  *    < * ,   ,*  
  0 0 )  !   -  "* +! 0  *-   ,!*    "*     
- !  !- .      -  , *" ,(    +  - *A  ,$  

                          2

Effective 7-1-2022

237

Item 26.



                            !     ""!  #    $#   %&                 

   5!,(     -  ,  ,*  ,(   !           ""* ) )  ,*  ,(    
 ))!,!*  .  !     ) #  ,(   "*..*/! 0  !    )) )  ,*
  /&% '        %#%&)     ')*+ '/ 3
 "   *    0   - * !) )  ,*  ,(    ))!,!*  .  !     )  !  
  ; !  ) <@    * ,   , *   0   +  ,# ,(  +* , /  
/!..  - @ *   < ( ."  *"  ,(    ))!,!*  .  !     )  !   ,(  
 +*  , *" !          

      ; !  ) <@ ,(   * ,   , *   0   +  ,B *   

    1  !. <.     )    ,(    --.!  <.   .!+!,   *" 
!        B

/(! (     !  .   $  
'(!     )*   +  ,   ( ..   *,  !         ,(  
 --.!  <.  .!+!,  *" !        $ 

238

Item 26.



                            
              

                                                               

                              !"     ##"  $    %$    &       

                           !           
                                  

'("    )*   +  , +*)"#"   "         - *!") )   )   ,(  #*..*/" 0 

        1       1    1    '    2  1    1 '
      ' 3      '       1'       1    '    2  1    1 '

        

  "   #  $$%&%'( )  (*+, $   ,*'(-*.
 ,  ,  (%/ &%'(-*.  '0 &%'(  ($   *0,%1&%'(  #  '"1) & $  1 , &%'(*

21      1    4          5  ''   
   ' 1 '%

  #* + ,"*    6 "  ) ,*  *+-. ,  ,("    ( ) . $ "#  *,  (*/   7*! $ /".. 7   (*/  "  ,(     .   ,"*  %

     0&%'(       2'  *  (  (*+, $ "    +  ) )  ,* 
"  . )            ))","*  .  "     )  ,(   -   * 8 9  *  
* 0  ": ,"* 8 9   (*/   "   ,(     ( ) . $  7 ,  * .; 
/",(     -  ,  ,*  ." 7".",;  #*   <7*)".;  " =  ;<  *  
<- *-  ,; ) + 0 <      )$ "  /(*.  *  "  -  ,$ 7; 
<;*    /* ><   ,  ,(   .*  ,"*   )  "0  , )    ) 
)    "7 )  "   ,(     ( ) .   *#  ,("     )*   +  , 
-  #* + ) #*  ,( ,  ))","*  . "     )   ) "  . ) ) 
"  ,(  <- *)  , ? *+-. , ) *-   ,"*   ( :  )<%
@*/ !    
   '(   "           ##* ) )  ,*     (   ))","*  . 

"     ) * .;  --."   ,* ,(   A,  , -  +",, ) 7; 
. /B   )

    #  *!   0  - *!") ) ,* ,(   ))","*  . "     ) "  
  6 "  )  7;      * ,   ,  *    0   +  ,$  ,(  
"           ##* ) )  ,*     (   ))","*  .  "     )
/"..   *,  7   7 * )    ,(    ,( ,  /(" (  ;*       
  6 "  )  7;  ,(    * ,   ,  *    0   +  ,  ,* 
- *!")  #*     (  ))","*  . "     )%

   5",(     -  ,  ,*  ,(   "           ##* ) )  ,*  ,(    
 ))","*  .  "     ) $  ,(   #*..*/" 0  "    )) )  ,* 
  0&%'(        %"%&*  #  (*+, (0 3 
 #   *!   0   - *!") )  ,*  ,(    ))","*  .  "     )  "  
  6 "  ) 7;    * ,   , *   0   +  ,$ ,(  +* , /  
/"..  - ; *   7 ( .#  *#  ,(    ))","*  .  "     )  "   ,(  
 +*  , *# "         
     6 "  ) 7; ,(   * ,   , *   0   +  ,B *  
   1! ". 7.     )    ,(    --."  7.   ."+",   *# 

"        B
/(" ( !   "  .   % 
'("     )*   +  ,   ( ..   *,  "         ,(  
 --."  7.  ."+",  *# "        %

                                    
                                         
                                 
                                       
                                     
                                     
                                      
                                
           

                           

Effective 7-1-2022

239

Item 26.



240

Item 26.



241

Item 26.



242

Item 26.



243

Item 26.



MANUS © 2013, XL America, Inc. Page 1 of 2 

All rights reserved. May not be copied without permission. 

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission 

ENDORSEMENT #031

This endorsement, effective 12:01 a.m., July 1, 202 , forms a part of Policy No.  CGD7459902 issued 

to PETERSON CONTRACTORS, INC. 

by Greenwich Insurance Company 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 

CITY OF DES MOINES, IOWA 
CITY OF CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA 

CITY OF CORALVILLE, IOWA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

Under the terms of this Endorsement, Jurisdiction shall mean any municipal corporation, as 
defined in Chapter 670 of the Iowa Code, with respect to all work and services performed by the 
named insured for any such Jurisdiction as identified on any Certificate of Insurance issued as 
proof of insurance as required by the Urban Standard Specifications for Public Improvements. 

1. Cancellation and Material Change

Thirty (3) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction in
insurance coverage and/or limits, and ten (10) days written notice of non-payment of
premium shall be sent to the Jurisdiction at the office and attention of the Certificate
Holder.  This endorsement supersedes the Standard Cancellation Statement on
Certifications of Insurance to which this endorsement is attached.

2. Additional Insured

The Jurisdiction, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees and
volunteers, all its boards, commissions and authorities and their board members,
employees, and volunteers, and all its officers, agents, and consultants, are named as
Additional Insureds with respect to insured autos and arising out of the contractor’s work
and services performed for the Jurisdiction.  This coverage shall be primary to the
Additional Insureds, and not contributing with any other insurance or similar protection

244

Item 26.



MANUS © 2013, XL America, Inc. Page 1 of 2 

All rights reserved. May not be copied without permission. 

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission 

available to the Additional Insureds, whether other available coverage be primary, 
contributing, or excess. 

3. Government Immunities 

A. Nonwaiver of Governmental Immunity.  The insurance carrier expressly agrees 
and states that the purchase of this policy and including the jurisdiction as an 
Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity 
available to the Jurisdiction under Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 

B. Claims Coverage.  The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 

C. Assertion of Governmental Immunity.  The Jurisdiction shall be responsible for 
asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so at any time and 
shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance carrier.  Nothing 
contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from asserting the 
defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the Jurisdiction. 

D. Non-Denial of Coverage.  The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage or deny 
any of the rights and benefits accruing to the Jurisdiction under this policy for 
reasons of governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent 
jurisdiction has ruled in favor of the defense(s) or governmental immunity 
asserted by the Jurisdiction. 

E. No Other Change in Policy.  The insurance carrier and the Jurisdiction agree that 
the above preservation of governmental immunities shall not otherwise change or 
alter the coverage available under this policy. 

All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged. 

245

Item 26.



Effective 7-1-2022

246

Item 26.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
 

    I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: December 8, 2022 

 SUBJECT: FY2023-2028 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) 

 

Attached is the required notice for the proposed FY2023-2028 Capital Improvements 
Program (CIP) hearing.   The CIP will be presented at committee on December 19th.    
 

The Code of Iowa requires that the City have a public hearing and I would request 

that the hearing be set for January 3, 2023. 

 
If you have any questions about the CIP or the process, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 

247

Item 27.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE  

FY2023-2028 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM (CIP) 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Cedar Falls City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa will conduct a public hearing on the proposed FY2023-2028 Capital 

Improvements Program (CIP) at 7:00 p.m. on the 3rd day of January 2023, said meeting 

to be held in the Council Chamber in City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

Copies of the foregoing described document are on file in the office of the City 

Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa and may be inspected by any persons 

interested.  Written comments to said proposed Capital Improvements Program may be 

filed with the City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa on or before the date of hearing, 

and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 

 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

By: Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

248

Item 27.



249

Item 28.



250

Item 28.



251

Item 28.



252

Item 28.



253

Item 28.



254

Item 28.



255

Item 28.



256

Item 28.



257

Item 28.



258

Item 28.



259

Item 28.



260

Item 28.



261

Item 28.



262

Item 28.



263

Item 28.



264

Item 28.



265

Item 28.



266

Item 28.



267

Item 28.



268

Item 28.



269

Item 28.



270

Item 28.



271

Item 28.



272

Item 28.



273

Item 28.



274

Item 28.



275

Item 28.



276

Item 28.



277

Item 28.



278

Item 28.



279

Item 28.



280

Item 28.



281

Item 28.



282

Item 28.



283

Item 28.



284

Item 28.



285

Item 28.



286

Item 28.



287

Item 28.



288

Item 28.



289

Item 28.



290

Item 28.



291

Item 28.



292

Item 28.



293

Item 28.



294

Item 28.



295

Item 28.



296

Item 28.



297

Item 28.



298

Item 28.



299

Item 28.



300

Item 28.



301

Item 28.



302

Item 28.



303

Item 28.



304

Item 28.



305

Item 28.



306

Item 28.



307

Item 28.



308

Item 28.



309

Item 28.



310

Item 28.



311

Item 28.



312

Item 28.



313

Item 28.



314

Item 28.



315

Item 28.



316

Item 28.



317

Item 28.



318

Item 28.



319

Item 28.



320

Item 28.



321

Item 28.



322

Item 28.



323

Item 28.



324

Item 28.



325

Item 28.



326

Item 28.



327

Item 28.



328

Item 28.



329

Item 28.



330

Item 28.



331

Item 28.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of December 5, 2022
	221205MINUTES

	Item 2.	PH - CFU Easement
	1. Memo - Public Hearing for West Viking Indutrial Park Phase V CFU Easement
	2. Location of Proposed Easement
	3. Easement Agreement

	Item 3.	Mayor Veto-3021 & 3022
	2022-12-13_ZoningSimpleMajorityVeto

	Item 4.	Board Resignation - Vajpeyi
	Eashaan Resignation

	Item 5.	Boards & Commissions-Reappointments
	2022-12-13_HSNG_FairbanksPearceReappoint
	Appts

	Item 6.	Standing Committee Minutes - 12/05/22
	12-05-22 Standing Committees Minutes

	Item 7.	Liquor Beer 12-19-22
	Retail alcohol licenses 12-19-22

	Item 9.	City Proclamations Policy
	2022-11-23_ProclamationsPolicyCoverLetter
	CFD 1127.XX - Council Policy - Official City Proclamations-Revision1

	Item 10.	Awards & Recognition Policy
	2022-11-23_AwardsPolicyCoverLetter
	CFD 1128.XX - Council Policy - Public Awards and Recognition

	Item 11.	Personnel Policy 223: Sexual Abuse
	12-19-2022 Personnel Policy Addition - Memo to Mayor Council
	223 Sexual Abuse DRAFT 12-12-22

	Item 12.	Personnel Policy 608: Concussion and Head Injury
	608 CONCUSSION AND HEAD INJURY DRAFT 12-12-22

	Item 13.	Personnel Policy 903: Grievance Procedure Amendments
	12-19-22 Grievance Procedure Personnel Policy Amendment Memo to Mayor Council
	903 Grievance procedure Redline 12-08-22

	Item 14.	Assessment-2722 College Street
	2722 College Street-Assessment

	Item 15.	Assessment-2804 College Street
	2804 College St. - Assessment

	Item 16.	Assessment-2208 Coventry Lane
	2208 Coventry Lane-Assessment

	Item 17.	Master Service Agreement-Municode/Civic Plus
	1. cc-memo-code supplement subscription
	2. CP MSA 2022_Download (1)
	3. MSA Addendum - 10262022 (003)
	4. Cedar Falls IA Annual Supplement Billing Statement of Work

	Item 18.	Tai Chi Agreement-Rec Center
	Memo for Council Tai Chi
	Goods  Services - Tai Chi Contract 02-17-2022
	Tai Chi Exhibits Updated
	Tai Chi Cert

	Item 19.	Assignment & Assumption Agreement - Orion Cedar Falls IA, LLC
	1_Council Memo for 12-19-22
	2_Assignment and Assumption Agreement
	3_Resolution Approving Assignment of Agreement

	Item 20.	CDBG-Service Agency Contract: Family Management Financial Solutions
	1. Council memo contract with FMFS
	2. contract

	Item 21.	CDBG-Service Agency Contract: Salvation Army
	1. Council memo contract with SA f
	2. SA contract

	Item 22.	Extension of FEMA Buyout Grant Deadline
	1_Memo Approving 3rd extension of the Flood Buyout Grant 12-21-22
	2._HMGP-DR-4557-0003 City of Cedar Falls Agreement Amendment #3 (time ext #3)

	Item 23.	Final Acceptance - 2022 Seal Coat Project
	1  Final Out - 22 Seal Coat
	2. 2022 Seal Coat Retainage Release - Signed
	3. Lien Waivers - 22 Seal Coat
	4. PPM-Blacktop Service

	Item 24.	Bid - Main Street Reconstruction
	1. Memo Low Bid -Main Street Reconstruction
	2. Bid Tabulation

	Item 25.	Low Bid- Cedar River Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements Project.
	1. Memo Low Bid -  River Recreation 2022 Corrected
	2. River Rec BidWorksheet_8280099_Eval

	Item 26.	Contract-Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements Project
	1. Memo Contracts - River Recreation
	2. J22118 Contract Docs
	3. J22118 Contract
	4. J22118 Bond
	5. City of Cedar Falls COI

	Item 27.	Set PH-FY2023-2028 CIP
	CIP hearing notice council.mem
	PHNOTICE-CIP 2023

	Item 28.	Bills and Claims
	1 Daily Invoices 121922
	2 Council Invoices 121922

	Bottom

